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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

) 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Nicholas A. Toumpas 603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451
Commissioner FAX: 603-626-2983 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Lorraine Bartlett
Director

January 15, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth
and Families to amend an existing agreement with Easter Seals of New Hampshire, Inc.
(Vendor Number 177204), 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103, to conduct Child Care
Resource and Referral services in the Manchester catchment area, by adjusting certain budget
line items in State Fiscal Year 2015 in order to meet specified needs, effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. The Governor and Executive Council approved the original
agreement on May 15, 2013, (Item # 40). This is a zero cost amendment with no change to the
contract end date of June 30, 2015. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are availabie in the following account in State Fiscal Year
2015, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of
the contract without further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-
QUALITY ASSURE

State Fiscal | Class/Object Title Catchment |Activity Code| Budget
Year Area
Social Services
2015 102-500731 Contracts Manchester 42117709 $177,615
Total $177,615
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to allow the vendor to adjust certain budget lines in
order to meet contractual needs; update the language in Exhibit C-1 to reflect the vendor’s
current insurance coverage; and to update the standard contract language in Exhibit C and
Exhibit G. Easter Seals of New Hampshire, Inc. has experienced an unexpected staff change
that has affected coverage in the Manchester catchment area. The change has resulted in a
request from the vendor to adjust the budget line items of Total Salary/Wages and Consultants.
The Department supports the requested adjustments.

There are no additional funds being requested in this amendment. Other than the
amended insurance language in Exhibit C-1, updating the contract standard language in Exhibit
C and Exhibit G and the budget line adjustments outlined above, all other terms and conditions
remain unchanged from the original agreement approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on May 15, 2013, (Item # 40).
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Federal funds support preventive child care services and the scholarship child care
payment system. A requirement of this funding is that it be used to increase the availability,
accessibility, and quality of child care programs throughout the State. This is accomplished
through numerous activities including the provision of child care resource and referral services
for consumers and providers.

Child care resource and referral services are provided statewide by Division for
Children, Youth and Families catchment area. Services include high quality referrals and
consumer education for parties seeking matches with child care providers, and providing
current and aspiring child care providers with technical assistance in the areas of licensing, best
practice, and accreditation. The services aiso provide the Department, local and national
organizations, agencies, policy makers, public officials, businesses, and community members
with accurate data and information related to Early Childcare Education issues.

This contract was awarded as the result of a competitive bid process. On September 4,
2012 and again on December 21, 2012, the Division issued a Request for Proposal for Child
Care Resource and Referral programs to serve the ten (10) District Office catchment areas in
the State of New Hampshire.

Easter Seals of New Hampshire, Inc. was one (1) of the four (4) agencies selected in
the competitive bid process.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the vendor would
not be able to meet their contractual needs which could reduce the availability, accessibility,
and quality of child care programs in the Manchester Community.

Area Served: Manchester

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Approved by: b‘

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

/

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities to achieve health and independence.



Amendment #1 to the Easter Seals of NH, Inc Contract for
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services Contract

This first Amendment to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as “Amendment #1”) dated this 7th day of January, 2015, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and
Easter Seals of NH, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Corporation with a place of
business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 15, 2013 (item #40), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 this agreement may be amended only by
an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment by the
Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire;

WHEREAS the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend Exhibit B and Exhibit B-2, a — Budget
Proposal — Manchester SFY 2015 Budget of the contract;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:
1. Exhibit B, Method, Schedule, and Conditions Precedent to payment, to add:

2.6 Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37, an amendment limited to the adjustment of
amounts between budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years, related items, and
amendment of related budget exhibits, can be made by written agreement of both parties
and does not require additional approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

2. Replace Exhibit B-2, a — Budget Proposal — Manchester SFY 2015 Budget with:
Exhibit B-2 — Amendment #1
3. Replace Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions with:
Exhibit C — Special Provisions
4. Add Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions
Replace Standard Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act with:

Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination,
Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations and Whistleblower protections.

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the
Agreement, and the obligations of the parties there under, shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Easter Seals of NH, Inc.
Amendment #1
Page 10f3



Amendment #1 to the Easter Seals of NH, Inc Contract for
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

/ /92 vl //
Date / / 4ry Ann Coone *
ssociate Commyjssioner

Easter Seals ANI:L Inc.

///’/}0///- %vwﬂv .
St y Name/Title E-///\]) \-/lﬂl/k../ (rn//"@

Acknowledgement: . .

State of Nﬁ ﬁ;m?;\(\)‘",f-County of \J\ \\\S\o otT00 q\bn \/% \ \S _before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified aboVe, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

w of Notawllc or-Justice of the Peace
iName ana Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace 7/

My Lomm, SS10N va'\res \olxsh‘i

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Easter Seals of NH, Inc.
Amendment #1
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Amendment #1 to the Easter Seals of NH, Inc Contract for
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

Davtz/l,'i’/\é Name: My m A W
Title: ‘P\ fr\“:\1

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Easter Seals of NH, Inc.
Amendment #1
Page 3 0of 3



Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #1

Bidders shall complete the following chart for each fiscal year. Additional line items can be included, but a through description must be provided in
the budget narrative. A Microsoft Excel version of this budget is available and can be provided if requested by the bidder.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Easter Seals NH
Budget Request for: Manchester Child Care Resource and Referral

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2015 Budget
1. Total Salary/Wages $ : 108,696 $ 108,696 $ 108,696
2. Employee Benefits $ 30,158 $ 30,158 $ 30,158
3. Consultants $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 7,000
4. Equipment: $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ R
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ 1,532 $ 1,532 $ 1,532
Educational $ - $ -
Office $ - $ -
Travel $ 1,800 $ 1,800 $ 1,800
Occupancy $ 6,528 $ 6,528 1 % 3,200 % 9,728
Current Expenses $ - $ -
Telephone $ 1,198 $ 1,198 $ 1,198
Postage/Printing $ 1,356 $ 1,356 $ 1,356
Subscriptions/Membership dues| $ 700 $ 700 $ 700
Audit and Legal $ - 3 -
Insurance $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ 16,147 | $ -1s 16,147 1 320 | % 16,467
TOTAL s | 177e5]s -Is  17r7eis|s 3520 [s 181,135

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10%

23
Contractor Initials:
Date: / / /0//




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ali appiicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shali be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Finai
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

=
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials \(C;/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ?C;/
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’'s performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shail have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in a¢cordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials g’
062714 Page 5 of 5 Date /; [ ; X ”/ f



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with additional
general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $15,000,000; and

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials é/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federaily assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nationai origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

//%0/1 - b

Date Name: — ¥ -
Title: Y2 NIV (-

—

Crd
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State of Neto Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Ilampshire, do hereby
certify that Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed November 6, 1967. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this officc

is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
sct my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New [Hampshire.
this 10" day of April A.DD. 2014

oy Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
I bm %LL , do hereby certify that:

Ni‘?@ O! he L{?{( \ T; Ly }‘ T}; "\q‘ fact swanatony:

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of ﬁ,d@f‘ Slg /\/Z{,J /-/M/l\lure [ac

oy Names

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on l,;ag /] 2()[’_{ ;
(Db

AT

RESOLVED: Thatthe [\ hiok F /unud Oz[ﬁ(,ea

S AT

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _ ™ day of Taniary 201S

{Date Contract Signe Q

e
4. E}I\/I /(‘Z(Lm)f is the duly elected ﬁkw{ ﬁ/]lu’(l:tk m¢¢¢/
(Name of Contract Signatery of Contract Signan:
of the Agency. /él M
ol of the Fleciod Officer

sTATEOF New Hamp Shirg

County of \t\ \\5509@5% h

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this & Y1 day of Aah\:arYZO \&

By F%a-\'\v Burke
DS

iame of Elected Officer of the Agency)
ry Public/Justice of the Peace)

y ™. 'Boalc.e/ ﬂokan/

Commission Expires: _\0 \‘\‘5 \ \9

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



Client#: 497072 EASTESEA?
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

ACORD.  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE e oo

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

" IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjectto
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁm?ﬂ
Usi Insutance Services l'.LC No £ '855-874-0123 ‘mg' ;0)17565;5—25:1 107~
3 Executive Park Dr., Suite 300 § m L <c. sandy.lacroix@usi.biz
Bedford, NH 03110 ; ] INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE o NAIC #
855-874-0123 S o } " INsuRen a : Philadelphia Insurance COmpany '23850
INSURED INSURER B ;

Easter Seals NH, Inc. INSURER C -

Easter Seals NY, Inc. 'W“"

555 Auburn Street -msu;‘ o E: I

Manchester, NH 03103 : )

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE: §

'f‘s“ TYPE OF INSURANCE &Ds%"is ar POLICY NUMBER mh’:%‘k%% ‘(ﬁﬂk')grv YY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY XX PHPK1 220846 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILTY ‘ pém%E g?g‘;%'éc.,“,%,,ce) $100,000
CLAIMS-MADE ] X| occur )MED EXP (Any one person) 155,000
X Professional Liab ‘ | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000, 000
o P _ GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
| GEN AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: : - PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $3,000,000
poLicY | B LOG , ; s
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY T PHPK 1220846 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 FHelEn S NGELMT | 1,000,000
X anv auTo ; BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
T ALL OWNED N | SCHEDULED } | BODILY INJURY {Per acciden) $
_ X wpepautos X ‘NON OWNED rgg):fc?ug\r?MGE ;5 L
A | X UMBRELLALIAB X ' ocCUR 1 PHUB471553 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE s15 000, 000
_ EXCESS LiAB . CLAIMS-MADE' ‘ | | AGGREGATE 's1 5,000,000
| pep . X Rretention$$10,000 Lo ) , ! e 71_7
oyt A _Hollihe |5
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECU™ |v=l Pnial | E.L. EACH ACCIDENT '8
|

{Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPT!ON OF OPERATIONS below . , ; E L. DISEASE - PCLICY LIMIT ' §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Anhch ACORD 101, Addilional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
“*Supplemental Names**: Easter Seals NY, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Inc., STS, inc., Agency Reaity, Inc.,

Easter Seals Rhode Island, Iinc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, inc., dba The Farnum Center,
Easter Seals VT, Inc.,- The General Liability policy includes a Blanket Automatic Additional Insured
Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket Waiver of Subrogation status to the Certificate
Holder, only when there is a written contract or written agreement between the named insured and the

(See Attached Descriptions)

v
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
State of NH SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Dept. of Health & Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of 2 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#S13141709/M13136562 LXGZP




Easter Seals
New Hampshire

Our mission is to spread help, hope & answers

Easter Seals provides exceptional services, education, outreach, and advocacy so that people living with
autism and other disabilities can live, learn, work and play in our communities
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BAKER|NEWMAN |NOYES

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Director§
- Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Managemem ’s Résponsibility Sfor the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these conselidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

" An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors® judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Ac¢ordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

" We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC

1



To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather
than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 5, 2014
on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting add compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Goyernment Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals New Hampshire,
Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

._Bd(er'\)amr\?kbes

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 5, 2014



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual allowance
of $218,900 in 2014 and $210,300 in 2013, and allowance for
doubtful accounts of $440,800 in 2014 and $930,400 in 2013
Contributions receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $45,400 in 2014 and $25,500 in 2013
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trusts held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portidn
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

2014 013
$ 2757134 $ 3,042,621
341,653 247,471
10,122,747 11,224,708
705,374 686,110
300,046 541,961
678326 783.844
14905280 16,526,715
986,277 4,558,513
25004383  28.066 884
1,289,894 822,504
235,113 244,751
13,833,046 14,264,341
1.550919 _6.830.800
$57,894,912 $71,314,508
$ 2197904 $ 4212394
1,907,743 1,812,128
4251482 4,143,454
858,258 839,567
615,570 708,132
4228339 796,290
14,059,206 12,511,965
999,167 4,218,053
087185 1367458
2714243  2.050214
18.976300  25.318.667
37,736,191  45,466357
14,189337 14,767,708
944,862 925.437
5.024.522  10.155.006
20.158.721  25.848.151
$57.894,912 $71,314,508



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

4

Year Ended August 31, 2014
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions 744,262 § 542,179 13,813 $ 1,300,254
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $819,901 1,059,080 756,895 - 1,815,975
Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $67,889 468,261 33,589 - 501,850
Bequests 448,558 - - 448,558
Net assets released from restrictions 1,356.595 (1.356.595) - -
Total public support 4,076,756 (23,932) 13,813 4,066,637
Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies 67,725,297 - - 67,725,297
Other fees and grants 25,094,296 - - 25,094,296
Sales to public 4,270,196 - - 4,270,196
Dividend and interest income 742,337 3,613 - 745,950
Rental income 65,204 - - 65,204
Other 459,188 - - 459,188 -
Total revenue 98.356.518 3.613 - 98.360.131
Total public support and
revenue 102,433,274 (20,319) 13,813 102,426,768
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education 515,992 - - 515,992
Professional education 29,065 - - 29,065
Direct services 89.987.134 - - 89.987.134
Total program services 90,532,191 - - 90,532,191
Supporting services:
Management and general 9,419,570 - - 9,419,570
Fundraising 2,006,939 - - 2,006,939
Total supporting services 11,426,509 - - - 11.426.509
Total functional expenses 101,958,700 - - 101,958,700
Support of National programs 122,586 - - 122,586
Total operating expenses 102,081,286 - - 102,081,286
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations 351,988 (20,319) 13,813 345,482



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2014

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Other nonoperating losses

Increase in net assets before effects
of deconsolidation of affiliate

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations —
see note 13

Total (decrease) increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ (594,854) $ - 3 - (594,854)
1,496,964 37,986 - 1,534,950
- - 574,970 574,970
14,352 - - 14,352
(249.092) - - (249.092)
667.370 37.986 574,970 1.280.326
1,019,358 17,667 588,783 1,625,808
(121,612) 200y (5.719.267)  _(5,841.079)
897,746 17,467  (5,130,484) (4,215,271)
(1.476.117) 1958 - (1.474.159)
(578,371) 19,425 (5,130,484) (5,689,430)
14,767.708 925437  10,155.006 25.848.151
$_14,180337 $__944.862 $_5,024,522 $_ 20,158,721



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $307,832

Annual campaigns, net of related

direct costs of $80,637
Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental

agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

~ Total operating expenses

Increase in net assets from operations

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

$ 861,583 § 1,622,346 §$ 13,648 $ 2,497,577
857,369 131,154 - 088,523
391,930 51,304 - 443,234
369,823 - - 369,823

1,497,063 (1,497.063) - -
3,977,768 307,741 13,648 4,299,157
63,628,203 - - 63,628,203
24,013,223 - - 24,013,223
4,019,558 - - 4,019,558
681,151 1,141 - 682,292
144,771 - - 144,771
679,263 - - 679.263
93,166,169 1,141 - 93.167.310
97,143,937 308,882 13,648 97,466,467
609,102 - - 609,102
41,275 - - 41,275
84.342.495 - - 84.342.495
84,992.872 - - 84,992,872
9,403,893 - - 9,403,893
1.755.299 - - 1,755.299
11.159.192 — — 11,159,192
96,152,064 - - 96,152,064
121,780 - - 121.780
96.273.844 - - 96.273.844
870,093 308,882 13,648 1,192,623



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains

on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others
Other nonoperating losses

Gain on sales and disposals of property,

plant and equipment

Increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations
Total increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 2,377,632 § - 8 - $ 2,377,632
789,496 24,173 - 813,669
- - 239,436 239,436
(107,120) - - (107,120)
7,392 — - 7,392
3.067.400 24,173 239,436 3,331,009
3,937,493 333,055 253,084 4,523,632
(1,107,544) (6.368) - (1.113.912)
2,829,949 326,687 253,084 3,409,720
11,937,759 598.750 9,901,922  22,438.431
$14,767,708 $__925.437 $10,155.006 $25,848.151
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
(Decrease) increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt provision

Increase in fair value of beneficial interest in trusts held by others

Net loss (gain) on sales and disposals of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale and impairment losses

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains on investments

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Rate reserve
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale
Cash provided for deconsolidation of affiliate
(Increase) decrease in investments, net
Change in assets limited as to use
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayments on lines of credit
Borrowings on lines of credit .
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

10

2014

2013

$ (5,689,430) § 3,409,720

1,771,703 1,807,843
265,007 774,569
(574,970) (239,436)
125,346 (283,942)
594,855  (2,377,632)
(1,534,950) (813,669)
5,841,079 -
(94,182) 194,509
818,382  (2,677,707)
(20,090) (194,381)
102,454 520,329
81,516 (4,483)
304,390  (1,037,545)
- (435,008)
(61,478) (478,150)
(380.273) 198,799
1,549,359  (1,636,184)
(1,244361)  (4,859,057)
15,225 531,189
(21,440) -
1,709,413 (444,915)
265,625 375.304
724,462  (4,397,479)
(825,393) (750,199)
280,575 3,194,506
(53,526,692)  (27,372,936)
51512202  29.602.726
(2,559.308) _ 4.674.097
(285,487)  (1,359,566)
3.042.621 4.402.187

§_2757,134 §_3,042.621



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31,2014 and 2013

2014 013

Supplémental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid $_1.201.000 § 1,119,000

In 2014, Easter Seals NH transferred its sole member interest in a consolidated affiliate to an unrelated party
(see note 12). During 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH transferred property with a net carrying value of
$607,088 and $16,224, respectively, from fixed assets to property held for sale.

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of various separate
nonprofit entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Easter Seals New
York, Inc. (Easter Seals NY); Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (Easter Seals ME); Easter Seals Rbode Island, Inc.
(Easter Seals RI); Agency Realty, Inc. (real estate corporation); The Harbor Schools Incorporated (Harbor
Schools); Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center; Easter Seals Connecticut, Inc. (Easter Seals
CT); and Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals VT). Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole
member of each subsidiary. Easter Seals NH is affiliated with Easter Seals, Inc. (the national headquarters
for the organization).

On May 22, 2013 the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to dissolve and
transfer the assets and liabilities of Special Transit Services, Inc. to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY, voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program. On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in
Portland, Maine was transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME
discontinued offering those services. On September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT
voted to discontinue the camp programs and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013. On
January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and cease all
operations of this subsidiary, and also voted to approve discontinuing the group home and special
education programs in Rutland, Vermont. On June 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH
voted to discontinue the Pediatric Outpatient programs located in Manchester and Dover due to significant
losses the programs were experiencing. See also note 13.

In May 2013, the Boards of Directors of Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Webster Place
voted to merge the two organizations with Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center being the surviving
corporation, having found such merger to be in the best interest of both organizations. The effective date
of the merger was September 1, 2013. :

On July 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind,
Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole
member interest in Easter Seals CT to Qak Hill for no consideration. See also note 12.

Easter Seals NH’s purpose is to provide (1) programs and services for people with disabilities and other
special needs, (2) assistance to people with disabilities and their families, (3) assistance to communities
in identifying and developing needed services for residents, and (4) a climate of acceptance for people
with disabilities and other special needs which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the
community. Easter Seals NH operates programs throughout New Hampshire, New York, Maine,
Massachusetts (prior to the closure of Harbor Schools), Rhode Island, Vermont and Connecticut. '

Summary of Significant Ac¢ounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

12



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, overnight repurchase agreements and money
market funds, excluding assets limited as to use.

The management of Easter Seals NH has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand.
Approximately $2,483,000 and $2,432,000, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately
$2,512,000 and $2,238,000, respectively, of investments were on-hand under this practice as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments, Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other
nonoperating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of several trusts held by others. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an
asset the fair value of its interest in the trusts and such amount is included in permanently restricted net
assets, based on the underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change is
recorded within other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses as permanently restricted activity.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September 1, 2011 are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending resolution of the
uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded
as unrestricted support. See also note 5.

Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of net realizable value or carrying value. Easter Seals NH
recognized impairment losses on certain property held for sale in 2014 of $139,698, which is recorded in
other nonoperating losses.

13



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intanzible Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Accounting rules require that intangible assets with estimable or determinable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed by
management for impairment. Intangible assets at August 31, 2014 and 2013 consist of a patient list
obtained in the acquisition of Webster Place.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through the end of their useful lives is as follows:

2015 $ 33,130
2016 33,130
2017 33,130
2018 33,130
2019 33,130
Thereafter 66,263

$231,913
Amortization expense recognized for the patient list in 2014 and 2013 totaled $33,130. '

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired
by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occurred and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment.

Based on current facts, estimates and assumptions, management believes that no long-lived assets were
impaired at August 31, 2014 and 2013.

Bond Issuance Costs
Bond issuance costs are being amortized by the straight-line method over the repayment period of the

related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever is shorter. Amortization expense
recognized during 2014 and 2013 was $9,638.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue generated from services provided to the public is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts
from clients, third-party payors and others based upon approved rates as services are rendered. A
significant portion of Easter Seals NH’s revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors. As such, Easter Seals NH is dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities.
There is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the
near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to
be recoverable or payable arg included in other fees and grants in the year that such amounts become
known. Easter Seals NY recagnized additional revenue of approximately $7,654 in 2014 and $1,046,000
in 2013 due to favorable rate adjustments approved by the State of New York.

14



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A third-party payor for three Easter Seals NY programs charged a facility tax assessment on a monthly
basis in 2014 and 2013. The charges are a part of Easter Seals NY’s reimbursement contract with the
payor. The facility tax assessment is based on approved rates. As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, the
facility tax assessment due was approximately $136,000 and $138,000, respectively, and is recorded in
deferred revenue in the accompanying statements of financial position.

Revenues are recognized as earned, or attributable to the period in which specific terms of the funding
agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred for the purposes specified by
the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts are accounted for as deferred
revenue until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the collectibility
of outstanding balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and past collection
efforts in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are charged against the allowance |,
for doubtful accounts when deemed uncollectible. The bad debt provision in 2014 and 2013 totaled
$265,007 and $774,569, respectively.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged.

Advertising

Easter Seals NH’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Funetional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time

records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH’s management.

Charity Care (Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as determined
by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with decisions made
by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately $6,802,000 and
$7,373,000 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals NY, Easter Seals ME, Easter Seals VT, Easter Seals R,
Harbor Schools, Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Easter Seals CT are exempt from both
federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, for Easter Seals
NY of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York. Agency Realty, Inc. received a
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies for tax-exempt status under
Section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

15



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax
position historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken in
income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold, based
upon the technical merits of the position. -

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries
on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the organizations have maintained their tax-exempt
status, do not have any significant unrelated business income, and have taken no uncertain tax positions
that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Easter
Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to income tax examinations by the
federal or state tax authorities for years prior to 2011.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements described in note 8. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal to
the net amounts receivable under the swap agreements (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreements. However, Easter Seals NH does not anticipate
nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.

As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $3,329,813 and
$2,758,346, respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 8. As a result
of changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments, Easter Seals NH recognized an
decrease in net assets of $571,467 ($23,387 of which is included in deconsolidation of affiliate as an
increase in net assets) for the year ending August 31, 2014, and an increase in net assets of $2,377,632
for the year ending August 31, 2013 related to swap agreements.

Increase in Net Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the -
provision of services are reparted as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations. The primary transactions reported as other nonoperating expenses, gains and
losses include the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the increase in the fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others, gains and losses on sales and disposals of property, plant and equipment,
and net realized and unrealized gains on investments.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2013 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2014 presentation.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to determine
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH’s fiscal year end and
December 5, 2014, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Classification of Net Assets

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Gifts are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by
Easter Seals NH has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction
expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements
of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Permanently restricted net
assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by Easter Seals NH in perpetuity, the income from
which is expendable to support all activities of the organization, or as stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIFA, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the
fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic
conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (¢} the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of
the organization. '

17



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

The major categories of endowment funds at August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014

Camping program
Other programs
Operations

Total endowment net assets
2013

Camping program

Other programs

Operations

Total endowment net assets

Changes in Endowment Net Assets

Temporarily = Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total
$ 3,072 $ 364,869 $ 367,941
33,332 353,019 386,351
- 3.613.207 3.613,207
$36,404 $4331,095 $4.367,499
$ 1,918 $ 363,869 § 365,787
18,913 340,203 359,116
- 3613207 3.613.207
$20.831 $4317,279 $4.338.110

During the years ended August 31,2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-related

activities:

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2012

Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized)
Contributions
Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2013

Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized)
Contributions
Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2014

Temporarily  Permanently
Restricted Restricted Total
$ 16,043 $4,303,631 $4,319,674
18,777 - 18,777
563,208 - 563,208
- 13,648 13,648
(577.197) = (577.197)
20,831 4,317,279 4,338,110
22,617 - 22,617
970,963 - 970,963
- 13,816 13,816
(978.007) - (978.007)
$4,331.005 $4.367,499

$._36.404
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Permanently  Total Non-
Temporarily  Restricted = Endowment
Unrestricted _Restricted (See Note 11) _Net Assets

2014

Seniors program $ - $ 23,866 $ - $ 23,866
Veterans program 263,880 9,702 — 273,582
India initiative 104,600 668,198 - 772,798
Other programs - 174,192 - 174,192
Operations 13.820.857 32,500 693.427 14,546,784
Total non-endowment net assets $14,189337 $908.458  $_693.427 $15,791,222
2013

Seniors program $ 88902 §$ 11,729 $ - $ 100,631
Veterans program - 517,035 - 517,035
India initiative - 57,881 - 57,881
Other programs - 285,461 - 285,461
Operations 14,678.806 32,500 5.837.727 20.549.033
Total non-endowment net assets $14,767,708  $904,606 $5,837,727 $21,510,041

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent duration.
Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. There were no deficiencies between the
fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor stipulation at
August 31, 2014 or 2013.

Investment and Spending Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-
restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate market index while
assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its endowment funds to provide
an average rate of return over a five year period equal to the rate of 2% over the inflation rate. Actual
returns in any given year may vary from this amount.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns. are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long ag it would not detract from Easter Seals NH’s critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

Leases

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as operating
leases. Total expense under 4l leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately $2,420,000
and $2,168,000 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Some of these leases have
terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH’s option without
substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at August 31, 2014,
through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as follows:

Year Ended August 31:

2015 $2,018,870
2016 1,486,328
2017 1,044,716
2018 v 385,129
2019 221,698
Thereafter 31,240

Easter Seals NY leases certain facilities for school operations from unrelated parties at lease terms that
are either below fair market value, or that are almost entirely rent-free. Under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, lease agreements must be evaluated based upon their
economic substance rather than legal form, and a lease subsidy would be recorded as both contribution
and rental expense. However, Easter Seals NH has determined that such amounts would not be material
to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Easter Seals NY subleases certain office space located at 11 West 42" Street in New York to an unrelated
party. The sublease agreement expires in February 2014. Total rental income earned under this sublease
agreement for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $65,000 and $144,000,
respectively.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31:

2014 2013
Buildings $ 27,225,674 $ 33,015,085
Land and land improvements 2,696,051 3,494,009
Leasehold improvements 997,631 952,100
Office equipment and furniture 9,679,631 9,917,122
Vehicles 3,250,383 3,225,015
Construction in progress 296,043 216,678

44,145,413 50,820,009
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (19.051.030) (22.753.125)

$.25,094,383 $_.28.066,884

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $1,728,935 and $1,765,075 in 2014
and 2013, respectively. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets included within discontinued
operations in 2014 and 2013 totaled $64,351 and $218,670, respectively.

During 2012, Easter Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of approximately
$1,100,000. Under the terms of the donation, for a period of six years, Easter Seals NH must continue to
use the building as a child care center. Should Easter Seals NH cease to operate the program, or wish to
sell or donate the property, Easter Seals NH must first provide the donor with the opportunity to purchase
the property for $1. The contribution representing the fair value of the building has been recorded as
deferred revenue at August 31,2014 and 2013.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 523616 $ 3,513,266
Certificates of deposit - 554,282
Marketable equity securities ' 1,883,153 2,770,110
Mutual funds . 11,634,793 10,992,033
Corporate and foreign bonds 711,063 903,497
Government and agency securities : 366,744 631,627

15,119,369 19,364,815
Less: assets limited as to use (1.286.323)  (5.100.474)
Total investments, at fair value $13,833,046 $14,264,341
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

The composition of assets limited as to use at August 31, 2014 and 2013 is set forth in the table shown
below at fair value. The portion of assets limited as to use that is required for obligations classified as
current liabilities is reported in current assets.

201 2013
Under an agreement with the State of Connecticut, which provides that
the funds be utilized for certain allowable program expenditures:

Cash and cash equivalents $ - $2,310,566
Certificates of deposit - 554,282
Mutual funds - 428,148
Marketable equity securities ~ 151,573

- 3,444,569

Under a deferred compensation plan (see note 7):
Investments 986,277 1,367,127
Maintained in escrow to make required
payments on certain bonds (see note 8):
Cash and cash equivalents 300,046 288,778

Total assets limited as to use $1.286,323 $5,100,474

The principal components of investment income and net realized and unrealized gains included in
continuing operations and other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses are summarized below.

2014 2013
Unrestricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:
Dividend and interest income $ 742,337 $ 681,151
Net unrealized gains : 668,363 231,743
Net realized gains 828.601 557.753

2,239,301 1,470,647
Restricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:

Dividend and interest income 3,613 1,141
Net unrealized gains ' 20,109 7,631
Net realized gains : 17.877 16,542

41,599 25314

$2,280,900 $1,495.961
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Employee contributions may be matched by Easter Seals NH as determined in the annual budget.
The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual maximum
amounts. The employer match was approximately $673,000 and $474,000 for the years ended August 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in
an Internal Revenue Code Se¢tion 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may make
a discretionary contribution. The employees’ accounts are not available until termination, retirement,
death or an unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. contributed approximately
$128,000 and $130,000 to this plan during the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
assets and liabilities associated with this plan were $986,277 and $1,367,127 at August 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and are included within assets limited as to use and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:

[
=
[\
(=]
—
(98]

Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 A, tax exempt, issued through the New

Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA),

with a variable rate determined through weekly remarketing (0.06%

at August 31, 2014) through December 2034, annual principal

payments continually increasing from $400,000 to $1,060,000 with

a final payment of $1,060,000 due December 2034, secured by a

pledge of all gross receipts of Easter Seals NH and certain letters of

credit (see below) $14,275,000 $14,660,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, issued through the Monroe County

Industrial Development Corporation, interest only payments due

through December 2011, after which monthly principal and interest

payments ranging from $10,050 to $21,980 are required through the

maturity date of December 31, 2040. Interest is payable monthly at a

rate equal to 68% of the sum of the monthly LIBOR rate plus 2.65% , ,

(1.91% at August 31, 2014) 4,929,360 5,052,360
Mortgage payable to a bank with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 2.65%,

principal of $9,500 plus interest payable monthly, with a final

payment of $2,299,000 due March 2015, secured by all business

assets and property of Easter Seals CT, excluding certain assets

limited as to use (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12). - 2,470,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

2014 2013
Non-revolving note payable to a bank with a total availability of
$3,500,000 with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 4.07% (4.23% at
August 31, 2014), interest only payments through June 2014, after
which monthly principal and interest payments are required
through the maturity in June 2015, secured by an interest in certain
property with a net book value of $3,888,720 at August 31,2014 $ 3,482,580 $ 3,500,000
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $985 payable monthly through April 2018, secured by vehicles 41,386 52,008
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $525 payable monthly through September 2018, secured by
vehicles 24,449 -
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.66%, principal and interest
of $3,177 payable monthly, due August 2015, secured by vehicles 37,353 73,357
Unsecured note payable to an individual with a fixed rate of 5.25%,
principal and interest of $10,311 payable monthly, due April 2016 197,002 307,232
Note payable to a bank with g fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $2,923 payable monthly through September 2018, secured by
vehicles 136,074 -
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $546 payable monthly through January 2019, secured by vehicles 27,394 -
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $195 payable monthly through March 2019, secured by vehicles 10,137 -
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.24%, principal and interest
of $608 payable monthly through July 2019, secured by vehicles 33,925 -
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.24%, principal and interest
of $166 payable monthly through August 2019, secured by vehicles 9.979 -
23,204,639 26,114,957
Less current portion 4,228,339 796.290
$18,976,300 $25.318,667
Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:
2015 $ 4,228,339
2016 698,294
2017 642,760
2018 669,263
2019 643,064
Thereafter 16,322.919 -
$23,204,639
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

Lines of Credit and Other Financing Arrangements

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. had an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 nonrevolving equipment
line of credit. The line of credit was used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use
by Easter Seals NH through April 2,2014. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at a
fixed rate at the then prime rate minus 0.75% for maturities up to a five-year term. Upon maturity of this
agreement, the balances outstanding under the note payable at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were converted
to various term notes secured by vehicles, as described above.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. also has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 revolving equipment
line, which can be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use by Easter Seals
NH through June 2017. Advances are converted to term notes as utilized. The interest rate charged on
outstanding borrowings is at a fixed rate equal to the then Business Vehicle Rate at the time of the advance
for maturities up to a five year term. Included in long-term debt are two notes payable of $33,925 and
$9,979 at August 31, 2014 that originated under this agreement. Availability under this agreement at
August 31, 2014 is approximately $456,000.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (the sole member of Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools), Easter Seals
NY and Harbor Schools have a revolving line of credit with a bank, with available borrowings up to
$7 million (a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $59,000). Outstanding advances
are due on demand. The revolving line of credit has the following sub-limits which were last amended in
May 2013: Easter Seals NH $3.725 million, Easter Seals NY $3 million and Harbor Schools $275,000.
The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings is at LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.41% at August 31, 2014).
Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase from LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 5.25%.
The line is secured by a first priority interest in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.,
Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line
of credit be reduced to $3,500,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. The agreement
also limits each borrower’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of $500,000. Amounts
outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $262,356
and $262,356, respectively, related to Harbor Schools, $1,935,548 and $1,599,505, respectively, related
to Easter Seals NY and $0 and $1,425,875, respectively, related to Easter Seals NH.

Easter Seals CT had a demand revolving line of credit with a bank with available borrowings up to
$1 million. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at LIBOR plus 2.25%. The line was
secured by all business assets and property of Easter Seals CT, except for certain assets limited as to use
($3,444,569 carrying value as of August 31, 2013). Additionally, this line was guaranteed by Easter Seals
NH. The agreement also limited Easter Seals CT’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of
$1,000,000 related to real estate, and was cross collateralized with all Easter Seals NH borrowings at this
bank. Amounts outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2013 were
$924,658 (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)
NHHEFA 20044 Revenue Bonds

In connection with the NHHEFA 2004 A Revenue Bonds, Easter Seals NH is required to make deposits
of interest and principal of sufficient amounts to make the required interest payments and to retire the
bonds when due. The 2004A Revenue Bonds require that Easter Seals NH maintain certain reserve funds
with a trustee for current required principal and interest payments. Such amounts, which are included
within assets'limited as to use, totaled $300,046 and $288,778 at August 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.
This agreement also requires bank approval prior to Easter Seals NH incurring additional indebtedness.
Easter Seals NH has two letters of credit securing the bonds for $14,450,993 each (expiring and subject
to renewal on March 15, 2015, and mainly to support future principal and interest repayments due under
the 2004A Revenue Bonds). Easter Seals NH is required to replace or renew the two $14,450,993 letters
of credit upon their expiration or the related bonds may be subject to early redemption. Easter Seals NH
pays an annual fee for the two letters of credit relating to the 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Fees
incurred on these letters of credit totaled approximately $183,000 and $157,000 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

On December 1, 2010, Easter Seals NY, in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development
Corporation and RBS Citizens, issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds (the Series
2010 Bonds). The Series 2010 Bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in
Irondequoit, New York, provide for improvements to a school building and an existing rehabilitation
facility, and construct two residential rehabilitation facilities. Additionally, proceeds were used to
- refinance certain Easter Seals NY outstanding debt.

The Series 2010 Bonds are secured by a mortgage on all properties and improvements financed by the
bonds, and are guaranteed by [Easter Seals NH. Easter Seals NY may elect to prepay some portion or all
of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee, as defined. This agreement also requires bank
approval prior to Easter Seals NY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010 Bonds are subject
to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1, 2016, and thereafter
every five years through June 1, 2036. .

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Easter Seals NH has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in.connection with the Series 2004A
Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement has an outstanding notional amount of $14,275,000 and
$14,660,000 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which reduces, in conjunction with bond
principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in December 2034. Easter Seals NH remits interest
at the fixed rate of 3.54% and receives interest at a variable rate (0.06% at August 31, 2014).

On February 23, 2011, Easter Seals NY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in
connection with the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional
amount of $4,929,360 and $5,052,360 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which reduces, in
conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. Easter Seals
NY remits interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of monthly
LIBOR).
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

On December 27, 2010, Easter Seals CT entered into an interest rate swap agreement in connection with
an outstanding mortgage payable of $2,470,000 at August 31, 2013. The original notional amount of
$1,800,000 reduces ratably in conjunction with repayment of the note payable. The swap agreement
effectively changed the variable rate to a fixed rate of 2.72% for the notional amounts outstanding, which
is approximately 65% of the related mortgage payable (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12).

The fair value of the above interest rate swap agreements totaled $3,329,813 and $2,758,346 at August 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively, $615,570 and $708,132 of which was current at August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. During the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 net payments required by the agreements
totaled $674,448 and $692,269, respectively. These payments have been included in interest expense
within the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 11
with respect to fair value determinations.

Debt Covenants

In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter Seals
NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum liquidity
and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH was in compliance with restrictive
covenants specified under the NHHEFA bonds, Series 2010 Bonds, and other debt obligations.

Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH’s program services
and fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure the value.

Related Party Transactions

Approximately 13% of other:fees and grants revenue is derived from a pass-through grant from Easter
Seals, Inc. for both years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013. Easter Seals NH is a member of Easter Seals,
Inc. As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had a receivable of $334,352 and $247,471,
respectively, from Easter Seals, Inc. related to amounts due under this grant. Easter Seals NH also has an
amount due from Easter Seals CT of $7,301 at August 31, 2014 (see also note 12). Membership fees to
Easter Seals, Inc. were $122,586 and $121,780 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively and are reflected as support of National programs on the accompanying consolidated
statements of activity and changes in net assets.
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August 31, 2014 and 2013

11.. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurement date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors.

Certain of Easter Seals NH’s financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trusts, investments and the interest rate swaps, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions involving identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions
and projections in determining fair value.

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no chahges in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31, 2014 and
2013.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents are deemed to be Level 1. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds and government and agency securities that are based upon quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets are reflected as Level 1. Investments in certain other mutual funds
and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted
prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and reflected as Level 2. Investments in
certificates of deposit are at cost plus accrued interest, which is estimated to approximate fair value and
are included in Level 2.
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments {Continued)

Beneficial Interest in Trusts Held by Others

The beneficial interest in trusts held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying investments within the trusts. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds, government and agency securities and other asset funds are based upon
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and are reflected as Level 1. Investments in marketable
equity securities, mutnal funds and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and
generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and
reflected as Level 2. Investments in alternative and other asset funds are derived from other
methodologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques,
and not based on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions, and are reflected as Level 3.
Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining fair value.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The fair value for the interest rate swap liabilities is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the
counterparty using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and
discount the future amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest
rates.

At August 31,2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were classified as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2014
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 523,616 $ - 3 - $ 523,616

Marketable equity securities: .
Large-cap 1,238,248 - - 1,238,248
International 644,905 - - 644,905

Mutual funds, open-ended: :
Short-term fixed income 3,562,348 - - 3,562,348
Intermediate-term bond fund 824,376 - - 824,376
High yield bond fund 264,363 - - 264,363
Foreign bond 14,168 - - 14,168
Government securities ' 752,030 - - 752,030
International equities 784,490 - - 784,490
Domestic, large-cap 1,500,128 - - 1,500,128
Domestic, mid-cap 147,920 - - 147,920
Domestic, small-cap 3,480 - - 3,480
Domestic, Multi Alt 112,233 - - 112,233
Real estate fund 128,303 - - 128,303
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity
Corporate and foreign bonds
Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets
Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International fixed income
Commodity
Real estate investment trust

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

(o]

013
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Intermediate-term bond fund
High yield bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
International equities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 2510846 $ - - $ 2,510,846
508,556 - - 508,556
193,682 - — 193,682
326,879 - - 326,879
991 - - 991
- 711,063 - 711,063
366.744 - - 366.744
$14,408,306 $_711,063 = $15,119.369
$ 16,172 § - - $ 16,172
225,799 57,705 - 283,504
- 33,685 — 33,685
- 72,307 - 72,307
46,695 - - 46,695
- 133,076 - 133,076
30,821 - - 30,821
42,050 - - 42,050
35.117 - -~ 35,117
$_396,654 $_296,773 - §__693427
$ - $ - $3329.813 §_3,329.813
$ 3,513,266 $ - - $ 3,513,266
- 554,282 - 554,282
2,550,313 - - 2,550,313
219,797 - - 219,797
3,304,368 -~ - 3,304,368
543,938 - - 543,938
274,582 - - 274,582
210,342 - - 210,342
511,971 - - 511,971
693,837 - - 693,837
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
Real estate fund

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Fixed income and bond
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity

Corporate and foreign bonds

Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Mid-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets

Corporate bonds

Foreign bonds

Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International equity
International fixed income
Domestic large-cap equity
Domestic mid-cap equity
Domestic small-cap equity
Commodity

Government and agency securities

Real estate investment trust

Altemnative and structured asset funds

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 816851 3 - -~ $ 816,851
369,532 - - 369,532
237,828 - - 237,828
3,868 - - 3,868
427,663 - - 427,663
2,002,955 - - 2,002,955
493,556 - - 493,556
913,054 - - 913,054
173,305 - - 173,305
14,383 - - 14,383
- 903,497 - 903,497
631,627 -~ - 631,627
$17.907,036 $1.457,779 —_ $19364.815
$ 4,555 § - - 5 4,555
2,544,889 148,594 - 2,693,483
809,286 45,600 - 854,886
- 33,110 - 33,110
319,796 40,369 - 360,165
118,842 - - 118,842
- 709,131 - 709,131
- 6,029 - 6,029
- 654,361 - 654,361
34,664 ~ - 34,664
19,931 - - 19,931
67,476 - - 67,476
16,984 - - 16,984
20,565 - - 20,565
5,465 - - 5,465
20,202 - - 20,202
95,123 - - 95,123
33,921 - 88.834 122,755

$.4111,609 $1.637,194 $__88834 §_5837,727
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seals NH’s Level 3 assets and
liabilities for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013:

Alternative
Interest and Other
Rate Swaps = Asset Funds

Beginning balance, August 31, 2012 $(5,135978) $ 78,614
Unrealized gains, net 2.377.632 _10.220
Ending balance, August 31, 2013 (2,758,346) 88,834
Unrealized loss, net (594,854) -
Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12 23.387 (88.834)
Ending balance, August 31,2014 $(3329.813) $___ -

Excluding the impact of the deconsolidation of an affiliate (see note 12), the net amounts of unrealized
gains (losses) for the period attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to the interest
rate swaps still held at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $(594,854) and $2,377,632, respectively. The
amount of unrealized gains for the period attributable to the change in unrealized gains relating to the
Level 3 investments still held at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $0 and $10,220, respectively.

Easter Seals NH’s other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
from affiliates, program and other accounts receivable, contributions receivable, accounts payable, lines

of credit, and long-term debt, have fair values approximating their carrying values because of the short-
term nature of the financial instruments or because interest rates approximate current market rates.

Deconsolidation of Related Entity

On July 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind,

Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole

member interest in Easter Seals CT to Oak Hill for no consideration. Accordingly, all of the assets,
liabilities and net assets of Easter Seals CT were transferred to Oak Hill effective July 31, 2014. Easter
Seals NH was concurrently. released from all guarantees and other obligations related to Easter Seals CT.
Easter Seals NH recognized a decrease in net assets of $5,841,079 as a result of the deconsolidation of
Easter Seals CT. The accompanying 2014 consolidated financial statements include the operating results
of Easter Seals CT for the period from September 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 and the year ended
August 31, 2013.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

12. Deconsolidation of Related Entity (Continued

Summary statements of financial position and activities of Easter Seals CT for the period ended July 31,
2014 and year ended August 31,2013 follow:

July 31,
2014 August 31,
(Unaudited) 2013
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 21,440 $ 270,732
Program and other accounts receivable, net 18,572 283,994
Assets limited as to use 3,548,526 3,444,569
Investments, at fair value 256,832 1,699,874
Beneficial interest in trust held by others 5,719,267 5,207,585
Fixed assets 1,879,966 1,919,988
Other assets 24.828 108,708
Total assets 11,469,431 12,935,450
Liabilities and net assets:
Line of credit - (924,658)
Deferred revenue (3,138,717)  (3,456,204)
Long-term debt (2,365,500)  (2,470,000)
Other liabilities (124.135) (731.465)
Total liabilities (5.628.352) (7.582.327)
Total net assets $ 5841,079 $_5,353,123
11-Month
Period Ended Year Ended
July 31.2014  August 31, 2013
Total public support and revenue $1,027,556 $ 1,298,832
Total operating expenses (856,861) (1,048,542)
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses 778,724 361,524
Increase in net assets before discontinued operations $_949419 $__611.814

Losses from discontinued operations within Easter Seals CT for the eleven month period ended July 31,
2014 and year ended August 31, 2103 were $454,230 and $657,561, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

13. Discontinued Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include various programs and entities that are
reported as discontinued operations, as follows:

On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to approve
discontinuing the group home and special education programs in Rutland, Vermont.

On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and
cease all operations of this subsidiary.

On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program.

On May 2, 2014 the Sayville program in NY was discontinued as a license was not able to be
obtained.

On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in Portland, Maine was
transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME discontinued offering those
services. On October 17, 2013, the Maine Board of Directors voted to close the Maine Vocational
programs.

On September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT voted to discontinue the camp
programs and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013.

On June 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to discontinue the Pediatric
Outpatient programs lodated in Manchester and Dover due to significant losses the programs were
experiencing.

The management of Easter Seals NH has determined that the closure of each of these programs/entities
met the criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to close the programs/entities
were based on performance factors.

Summary statements of financial position for each of the above discontinued programs/entities as of
August 31,2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Vermont Harbor Schools New York
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total assets $ - $ - $878,144 $ 872,744 $ 32929 $51,896
Total liabilities - 1,197 648,892 595,053 44,511 9,289

Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted - (1,197) 180,556 230,951 (11,582) 42,607
Temporarily restricted - - 24,870 22,914 - -

Permanently restricted -~ - - 23,826 23,826 - -
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August 31, 2014 and 2013

13. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Maine Connecticut New Hampshire
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total assets $ 85 $1888 §$ - $2,119,068 $800,810 $ -
Total liabilities - - 38 - 2,470,000 31,783 29,592
Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted ,_ 825 1,850 - (350,932) 769,027 (29,592)

Summary statements of activities for each of the above discontinued programs/entities for the years ended
August 31, 2014 and 2013 ar¢ as follows:

Vermont Harbor Schools New York
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total public support
and revenue $ - 3 - $§ 22,127 § 12,907 $ - $ 320,825
Operating expenses - (20,310) (70,891) (329,961) (192,456) (628,465)
Other nonoperating :
expense, gains
or losses - - 830 (1,469) - -
Gain on sale of
properties, net - - — 291,788 - -
Total decrease in
net assets $ = $.(0310) $.(47934) $__ (26,735) $_(192,456) $(307,640)
Maine Connecticut New Hampshire
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total public
support and
revenue $ 4667 $210,588 $ 57,166 $ 774,143 $ 1,276,909 $ 1,996,997

Operating expenses  (42,262) (324,009) (511,596) (1,431,704) (2,018,853) (1,970,004)
Gain (loss) on sale
of properties, net - 325 200 = = _(15.563)

Total increase
(decrease) in

net assets $(37,595) $(113.096) $(454.230) $_(657.561) $_(741,944) $_ . 11,430

During 2013 Easter Seals NH sold two properties related to the closure of certain programs, which
resulted in net gains on the sales of property of $276,550.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

14. Concentrations

Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Financial instruments which
subject Easter Seals to-credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and investments. Easter Seals’
investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. Investments
that exceeded 10% of investments include the “Lord Abbett Short Duration Income A Fund” as of
August 31,2014, '

36



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION



LE

6768158 (SSCPIOL) $ ZOVLLITIS - $ PPI88$ TOTISc$ VI8Lec $ OJE9ZOLT$ SPE9S905S
6160551 = 8ELETY = = 89778¢ = = EI7'868 S19sSE JaYj0 puE
sIoylo Aq play SISTLI UT JSaIjUl [eIo1jauag

9v0°cE8'E1 - 0v8°006 - L69°8Y - - - 605°€88°C1 anfea J1e} Je ‘SuaUISIAU]
€II‘SET - S68°TL1 - - - - - 81279 19U ‘51509 douenssI puog
v68°68Z°1 - - - LY6°ST8 - - - LY6°€9Y ajes 10} poy Auadoig
£8€°160°ST - 0£€° 19€°¢ - - w2 128X 74 g $60°559°61 19U ‘sjossE PaxI]
LLT'986 - - ~ -~ - - -~ LLT986 uoruod JUaLIng JO 39U ‘a5t 0] SB payul] $19SSY
08Z°S06°v1  (SSTPIO'L)  $99°8TI‘y - 00S°€ 111061 09€°€1Z pIv'9L9'T  98F°LOLST SJOSSE JUALIND (810,
9C€'8L9 - Sy008C = = L 0v89¢ SLVT YPCCSE $19SSE JUS.LMD I9YJ0 pue sasuadxa predaig
910°00¢ - - ~ - - - - 940°00€ asn 03 se pajw sjasse jo uoidod jusLiny
pLE'SOL - 11+°681 ~ - peS 1T £v8°l - 985°26¥ 18U ‘s[qeAT992I SUOINGLOUOD
LyLTZ1'01 - 890°99¢°C - 00§‘¢ SSE'091 SYS'v91 02Z°¢9L 650°G9S‘9 19U ‘3[qRAISI2I SIUNODJE JAYJ0 pue Wresdold
£59°1 € (SsT'PI0°L)  €SE'peE ~ - - - 611°116 9EY 0119 sojel[lJe WOy S[qBAIIIAI SJUNOIVY
122 WA A AR S $ 18,858 - 3 - $ 00S $ zer'ot  $ 009 $ SII'L88°T § Sjusfeamnba yses pue yse)

. isjasse Juaum)

[e1I0L suoned S1o0X STIBJTREL (g ] pue[s[ SUTEA JUOULIS A aIqsdure
-ty MaN ‘sjooqog apoiy MON
Joqre{
S1ASSV
10T ‘1€ 1030y

NOILISOd TVIONVNIA 40 INHWNALV.LS ONILVAITOSNOD

STRIVIAISAAS ANV "DONI ‘TIHSJAVH MAN STVIES YILSVA



6t

SOSTICTLS (ZETTLS6) $ SILTLOCIS O0SPSe6els vwidl8 $ CI69PC$ 8SpOI9 § TSSLIOIS SIS0€S eSS
008°0£8°9 = TSO'SI9 S8CLOCS = L16°SE - - I¥T'696 §195SE I9YI0 pue

SI8WI0 £Q pIoY SISTL UI ISaJajul [e1ojauag
IPEY9T b1 - 661°1L8 $L8°669°1 OvL9Y -~ - - 8TS9Y9°I1 an[ea 11ej Je ‘sjusunsaAL]
1SLYPT - 19%'6L1 - - - - - 062°59 30U ‘53502 ddUBNSS| puog
v0S‘7T8 - - - $05'728 ~ - - - a[es 10y p[ay Auadoid
¥88°990°8¢ - £S¥°0TSS 8866161 - 0£1°0Z LLL'6T y66°1 TS PLSOT 10U ‘sjasse paXLy
£15'85S'y - ~ 98¢161°C - ~ - - LTI'L9€T  uonuod Jualmd 3O JoU ‘asn 0} Se PAUUWI| S}3sSY
S1L9ZS91  (LE1°1LS°6) 155788 L19°916 00S°€ $98°061 189°08S LS8SI9] 18L°L06°L1 S]OSSE JUSLMD [I0 ],
PP8EsL = 97522 35¢°08 = 9L76 20¢LE 0567 $699ZY §19S5E JUDLIND IS0 pue sasuadxs predaid
196°1%S - - £81°¢ST - - - - 8LL88C asn 03 se pajwi[ s3asse Jo uonod Juarm)
011°989 ~ $LET6T 05€'82 - SLI'0T STL - 8 EvE 19U “9[qeATadal SUOHNGLIU0)
S0LYTT11 - 68L°1€7°E v66°€8T 00S°c P16°091 PSETYS 0€€°LT9 LT8SLE'9  1OU ‘3[qRAIS03I SJUNOIOE JSYI0 pUE WeIF0I]
1LY LYT (LET1LS6) 1LY LYT - - - - LLOE86 090°885°8 S3je][IjJe WOy 3[qeAIadal SIUNOIIY
129cv0'c § - $ 0s9's88 § zeLolz $0 - $ 00S $  00¢ $ 00S $ 6£6'P88°1 $ sjuafeA[nbs Yses pue yse)

:8)98Se JHaLm))
[e10L SUoTIeU Yo x MINIUWA0)D Uy ~ puersy atTelN EGLTIEYY argsdurey
-y MIN ‘s[ooyas apoy MIN 4
Joqrey
SIASSV
€107 ‘1€ Isn3ny

NOILISOd TVIONVNIA 40 INFIWALV.LS ONLLVAI'TOSNOO

SATIVIAISENS ANV “ONI ‘THTHSJAVH MIN STVES YALSVI



)4

191U UOLIEN[IqRYSY WSI[OYOo[Y JAISSYOUEBA PUE *ou] ‘a0B[J Ja)sqap “~ou] ‘Aiesy Aouady sapnjouf

S0SPICILS (IETTIS6) $ STLTLOCIS OSvscecls VwLil8 $ Ti69rc$ 3Sp019 $ IS3LIOTIS GISOESCSS
TST"8P8°SC - 811€90C ECIE5ES T69°LLT 801'8LT  (TT0°S9CC) L95°68ST  SSSISO8T
900°SST 0T = TS078TS v8SL0T S 9z78°¢C L16°5¢E = = $79°69¢€ v
LEV'ST6 - 061°ZS1 - p16°CZ 4 3A 181 m 100°PEL
SOL'LILPT - LLS‘TOE T 6£S°Sp1 1S6°0€T 60L0vT  (Z98°6LT'T) 8956881  9Z6'LYS'El
LSE99p'Sh  (LE11LS'6)  L6S800°01T  LTET8SL £50°56$ $08°89 697'SL8‘T $87°8T 096'8L8'€E
L998TE ST - PIL996 Y 000795€°C = - - = £56°566 L1
PIT'050°T - £SpiEee SLYLT - - - - 987°669°1
8Sv°L9E’T - - ~ - - - - 8SH'LIE]
£50°81Z'p - - 98¢‘161°¢ - - - - L99'920°1
$96°115°TT  (LET'1LS6)  OEV'8OL'Y 99t°L10°T £60°6S #0889 69¥'SL8‘T v87'8T 965°68L 11
06C96L = £00°65T 000711 = = - = X TAT4S
TE1°80L - ocr'erl L9T'6E - - - - SEV'STS
L9S°6€8 - 911091 818‘v9T 0ST'S - £21°6S $60°C1 $91°ZhE
- (LET'1LS'6)  S6L9LT'T SEL'E6Y 765962 6TL8S 178°06L°T - S8YYS9‘y
PSYEPL'Y - 8TY'968 9¢8°611 8866 L19°9 £10°3T TTLL 058°850°¢
8Z1°718°1 - £SIELY TS1'69 L06 8SH'e 6Pl L9V'8 667°6ST°1
P6£TITY § ~ $ S0S66S‘T § 8S9'PZ6 $ 9S€°T9T $ - - $ - $ sL8'sTHl §
01 suo _umn j10o .ﬁ uzomuooﬁnoo “ouf vﬂd—mm oﬁdz JUOULID A vﬁmmﬁdm
-y MIN ‘s[ooyds apoy MON
loqrey

SLASSV LIN ANV SHI1ITdVI']

(3ohap) syesse 19U [BJO],

Pa101L0SAI AJUSURULIS
palornsal Ajureiodwa],
polInsaIuf

:(31019p) s3asSe JoN

SONIIGRH] [R0L

uonod JusLmd ss3] )qap uLI}-3U0T
uorpod juarmnd
§s9] ‘sjuowrearde dems ajes JsaIdu]

san[Iqel] WO

uoniod JULIMD JO JOU ‘SNUIAI PIURJS(]

SONI[IGEI] JUSLIND [e0 L

3q5p uLR)-3uo] Jo uonod juaLm)
sjuoweaI3e

deas 930135210301 Jo uoruod JuenIny

aNUSASI PaLId}Sp Jo uotkod juaimy)

sajer[iye 0} a[qesed spumodoy
sasuadxs panoy
s[qeAed sjunoody
1PAId JO saur]
‘satjiqerf Jusuny



87

161°2€5°06 (000°1€) SIELLT9T 0ETLLS - 1Ep°891°1 TOI°9SI°T 800°615°€ $01°598°9¢ soolates weidoud [ejo],
VET 136°68 (000°1E) L19°€20°9¢ YW89LS = - 088ROTT 320951°C €9L°81SE  TO08LS IS $391AI35 19311
$90°6Z - - - - - - — 590°6Z uoneoINnpa [euoIssaJold
T66°S1S - 869°€ST 98¢ - 1Ss‘c YL SHT 8€0°8ST uoyeonpa Yi[eay olqnd

:S301AI9S WeI1do1d
:sasuadxs SunelsdQ

89L°9Z¥‘T01  (VES'SEPT)  OSEOEI‘6T 955°L20°1 - 208°00¥°t $90°s0+'C 619°0v6'C 01219699 anuaaal pue yoddns d1jqnd [e30],
TET09236  (PE3BEYT)  PSVIve LT VLOLLE = SETC8T T SLTO8T¢C S1L 926 ¢ 60E169%9 SNUBARI 210,
88165V (05v'62) 4183 |FANZTS = TvE'S T $8C LSGEEl Yo
- (ss5°e8€'7)  $£0°99 - - - - - 0TS'LIE'T anuaAal Aueduroosapuy
¥0T'S9 wLs) L9 - - - - - TE01 swoou [eIusy
056'StL (S al~d] ¥6L°9S 818°cLE - (AR - - 1T1°6€€ SW0oU} JSAIRUL pue PUIPIAIQ
961°0LT'Y - - - - - - - 961°0LT Y afiqnd o1 sajes
96T'¥60°ST - 0TL'LLS Y 7986 - LET'19 ILYLE 120°699 S80°6EL61 sjue1d pue $39) 1910
L6T'STLLY - LPO‘TLOET €29'8vC - 881 YITl TE9TVIT 601°LST'E 86£068°LE sapouade
. [RJUSUNLIA0S W0]] SHueIF pure S92,
SANUIAIY
LE9'990'Y - 96888T°1 8¥°08 - ¥99°81C 06L¥CT #06°€1 106°69Z°T woddns o1qnd [e10],
35S 8YY = $S6LIT 6218 = TAL = = YoL 022 sjsanbag
0s8°10§ - - $00°¥T - vZ8'8y ore'6l 1£L°01 056°86€ 3au ‘sudredures [enuuy
SL6'SES’] - L8Z199 L Tead! - SS6ZEL SEL9I 06€£°T 791°066 100 ‘s1U0a9 [e12adg
vszooe'tr § - $ vs9'60r $  To6'S 0§ - $ SLI'SE $ SIL'88T § €8L $ ST0099 §$ suoynquIuo)
:poddns o1jqng
:9nuvAaz pue poddns orjqngd
[eioL suoneu 30X SHBITRETIUTig) U] pue[s| e JUOULID A Inysdurey
-y MIN ‘S|OOYOS apouy . MON 4
loqieH
10T ‘1€ IsnSny papuy Jesx

SLASSV LAN NI SHONVHO ANV SHILIALLOV 40 LNFWALV.LS ONILVAI'TOSNOD
SARIVIAISAAS ANV ‘ONI ‘TIIHSIAVH MAN STVIS YTLSVA



(47

I9)ua)) uoney[Iqeyay WSIOYOoo[Y I19ISAYIUBIA PUR “-ouf 20B[J J9ISQaM “ou] ‘Aieay Aouady sopnpu .

1285100 8 — $ B0TI6 8 = ¢ WT6tc s 6ocesl & (Twwwdte)$ T0L999T$ T0S9IS6LS 1ea£ J0 pua Je (101JOPp) 519558 1N
TST8¥8°5C - 31T €907C ECIESES T69°LLT 80T8Z1 (10°59CT) 1956851 $SCT169'81 Jeaf 3o SuuurSaq 1e (3101Jap) s1esse JON
(0£1'689°S) - (0+0°260°1) (czr'ese’s)  (6cr'sh) (6£8°8¢) (1€¥°66) S6I°LL LYT'$98 519558 10U Ul (35B3103p) 3SBAIOUL [B10],
(6STPLVT) LELL Osveer)  (E9v°T19%) (GEP'sH) = (S657LE) = (Y6 TvL) suonesodo panuRUoISIp uloL $SO]
(1Lz°s1T%) (LeL't) (85°668) (099°168°p) - (6£8°3€) (9€8°19) S61°LL 061°L09°T suone1ado panunuUoISIp JO S99
910J3q S)9SSE 1aU Ul (958aI0aP) 9sealou]
(8Z0°T¥8°S) = = (6Z0°TP8'S) = = - = = SIBI[1JE JO UOLEPI[OSU0D(]
97€08Z°1 - (€88°1H1) vTL8LL - 18T - - $€9°0¥9
(z60°6VC) - - - = = = = (Z60°6¥2) sosuadxa Suneradouou Joy30
TsEYI - - (910°7) - - - - 89¢91 wswidinbs pue yuerd ‘Ausdosd
Jo spesodsip pue safes uo (ssop) ured
0L6'VLS - L89'SY 789116 - 168°C - - 0SLP1 SIaYI0 £q pJoY sisny ul 353Ul
JeIoIJauaq JO anfeA Jiej Ul 9sealou]
0S6°vES‘1 - (0zo'y) pOL'SET - - - - 99Z°€0€‘1 SJUSUIISAAUL UO
(sasso]) sure8 pozijeaiun pue pazi[esl PN
(F$8v68) - (0ss‘€81) pseiee - - - - (859°vtv) sdems ajel 1S913)UT JO aNfeA J1eJ Ul 35uey)
:59ss0] pue sured ‘sasuadxa Suneladouou 10y10)
8P°SPE (LeL't) (ToL‘LsL) $69°0L1 - (069°1) (9£8°19) S61°LL 956996 suonesado woy
S19SSE 19U U] (35RII09P) I5BAIOU]
98z 180201 (Z60°TEve)  TS0838°6¢ 1987958 = TV L 10699%¢C ¥ eosc $S9Y66'S9 sasuadxa Juperado [elo,
98¢CCl = ¥1S°16 65S¢C = 01T¢ 909 = L6L°ST swres3o1d jeuolieN Jo Hoddng
00L‘8S6°101  (L60'1EVT)  LES96L°6T T0€'pS8 - T8E° 01 $6T°99¥%°C ¥Ty'£98°E L58°896°S9 sasuadxa [euonouny [ejo L,
6059 11 (Z60°00vT)  TIZ6ISE TLOLLT = 1S61LL [ 1 A Y R 2 7 TSLE0T6 sao1A1as Sutpoddns ejo ]
6£6°900°C (€8L7€1) $$S96L 35T 6e1 = SECTIvI 360°06 61t 15698 Suisrespung
0Ls'61¥'6  § (PI€98€T) § £99TeLT §  YISLPI § - 9IY0ET $ $60°0TT § L6OPFE $  S6LOPT'S $ [e1ous3 pue juowageuey
:sa01At0s Suruoddng
[eIoLl suoneu PIGY NONO3UUCYH Uy pueyst ureN JUOULIDA . arysdurey
-lun|g MIN ‘sjooyos apoyy MON 4

Joqreyy



197

TL8T66°'V8 (o0z‘sv1) LOT'EEY YT pLI‘TIS - SSSLLOT £06°SET°T $0T8LI'E 690°S0Y"S saolatos weidoxd [elo],

SV THEYS (00T78%1) 0869807 €€6 018 - 608°CLO°T SI8SEC | 6ICLITE  BETSOIPS §301A3S 102110

SLT 1Y - - - - - - - SLTIY uopEONp3 [EUOISSAJ01d

Z01°609 - L8I°9PE |82 - L€ L8 $88 956°LST uoneonpa yireay olqng

:$291AJas wedold

:sasuadxs SunesadQ

L9V 99 L6 (E¥S°150°T)  vEY'66£°8T 7€8°867°1 - 9TLYTE'] 0€£0°8ZS°1 €LT°609°C SILLSE'E9 anuaaal pue poddns orjqnd [ejo0],

01E°L9T°¢6 (€PST50°C)  T609S€ LT L€896T'T - 0696011 TZ076SET VTl T65€E 68F'%9509 anuIAdl [eI0],

€9C6L9 - 9CI I¥ S88°ZCS = 009°S 91 ¥6C°6 THEs6 el Te)

- (892°020°0)  ¥00'¥S - - - - - ¥92°996°1 anu3Aa1 Auedwooiaug
1LLYY] - 1€S°EhT - - - - - ovT'1 awoou] [eyuay
762789 (sLz19) 6YL'TS 6VL'S0E - 1€41 - - 8€9°€S¢€ SWooul Js3J3)Ul pue puaplAl]
85S°610' - - - - - - - 8SS‘610'Y a1qnd o} s3[eg
£TTEI0YT - 68SP6L°E #$5°91 - 068'%9 £L9°0€ 96°LTL $SS°8LE'6T syue1d pue 993 LaYiQ
£07°879°¢9 - £60°0LT°€T 6v9°9¥ € - 69L°LLOT TEERTE1 89¥'558°C T68°6bL Ve salouade

[EIUSWUIIA0T WO} sjueId pue s3a |

. 1INUAAY
LST'66Z' - EEHO'T $66°101 - 9€0°SL1 600691 6591 9ZT'E6L'T yoddns origqnd 10,
£C8769¢€ - ¥€C091 0T 0T = 01T vT6L = T9€301 s)sanbag
YeT ey - - T0L'T - £99°C€ 1z€'Tl #08°s1 ¥rL6LE 1ou ‘sugredwres [enuuy
£75°886 - STL'99% 162's€ - L¥9°901 STT'LS Ll 650°€TE 19U ‘SJu2Aa [eioadg
LLS'L6YT  § - £86°911 Ly $ - 9I0've $ 9IT0C $ 69§ $ 190°C86°T § . suoynqryuo)

:poddns oriqng

:anuaaal pue poddns oyqng
?30&.. mzoﬁmz uto A aso_uooccoo .o—: vcd_m— oc_dz JUOULID A qumcEmm
-y MIN ‘sjooyag apouy MIN »
.—oou.mm .

€102 ‘1€ 1sn3ny popuy Ies

SLASSV LIN NI SHONVHO ANV SHILIALLDV 4O INFWALV.LS ONILVAI'TOSNOD

STAVIAISANS ANV "ONI ‘NIIHSJNVH MAN STVAS YILLSVI



Iajus)) UOHBN{IqRYdY WSI{OYOI]Y IRISIYOURH Pue “ouj 99e]d I21SqIM ouf ‘Kijeay Aousdy sepnpu]

TT89852 3 -  $ BIT:90¢C § fZreccss T690LLC $ SOI'SLI S Aﬂd.wdlﬂﬂuw 7536351 S TSTICORL $ Ieak Jo pus 18 (JI01J9p) S}asSE JON
TEV8Er'Te = 08TIVT'T 0L8'86ES STV 0t 06ccll  (S¥ZSTO) ZE9015 1 €LS9STOT Jeak Jo Sunum3aq 1e (3oyap) siesse 19N
0TL'60¥'€ - 8€8vI6 Lyl sh) (s€L'92) 8ILS (99zz1) 0£6'8L 786v6¥'T SIOSSE 19U U] (35E2109P) 35EBIOUT [B10],
@igeirn = (0¥9°20¢) (T95°Z59)  (SEL9T) - (960°¢TT) (o1c02) OgvIt suonesado panupuodsip wioxy (sSof) awoduy
TE'ETS'Y - 8Ly Tl PI8 119 - 8IL°S 0€£8°001 0bZ'66 7SS E8°T SuoljRIado panuUNUODSIP JO 1090
310J9q S19SSE 19U Ul ISBIIOU]
GO0 TEEE = TFSETOS ¥Z519¢ = 6Tr T = = Z0090VC
76eL — = - p = = = 6L wowdinbos pue jueyd
‘Auadoid jo sjesodsip pue sajes uo ujer)
(ozizom - (£09'62) - - - - - (Lisees) sasso| Suneradouou 19410
9EY6ET - 0LIvT 9£0°802 - 621 - - 198°s sIoyjo Aq p[oy sisnu uf 3sasauy
JeoLyauaq Jo anjeA Iiej ul asearou]
699°€18 - (9s9°c1) T - - - - £01°S1L SHUSUYSIAUL UO
(sasso]) sured pazijgalun pue pazijea 1N
TE9°LLET - £05°08S 99Z°1Y - - - - £98°S5L°T sdess 931 1S2193UL JO aN[EA I1E} UI 3FUBYD
:s9ss0] pue suted ‘sasuadxoe Sunersdouou 10y3Q
£29°T61°1 - vZI°199 067°052 - 687t 0£8°001 ovT 66 058°9L suopesado woy sjesse
u E aseaJlou]
¥eELT96  (EPSIs0e O 4 VST = LSV oceT 00T LTh T €E00IS'E $98°08T€9 sasuadxa Supelado fe10L
08L1Z1 - 96C°58 620°S = SEvS $6% = STEST sures3oid feuonep jo Hoddng
#90TS1°96 (epS°150T)  Y16TS9°LT €IS'EP0°1 - 200°51€°1 $09°9ZH'1 £€0°015°E 0vS‘SsTie9 ~ sasuadxa [EUOROUNY [€30],
T616ST 11 (EvEe06' 1) IL6ITE X 4%4 = YWitEL Z0L 061 68 IEL TZF0588 . sooyates Supuoddns [eroL
66T SSLT (TO9°ZY) V9 EES 79€°951 - T0T911 €5€9¢ AN/ 1177856 Susrelpuny
£68°c0v'6 § (TYL'SS8'I) $ 860°989T §  LL6SL § - 9pZ 121 6vEPST  §  <S0L'6ZE $  09T'T68'L $ [esous3 pue yuowoFeue
:5901a19s Suntoddng
el SUOnEY ¥oX JWOHI[UODH U] pUeTst SUIRN JUOULB A aigsdmey
Ry MIN ‘stooyds apoy MON 4

loqreH



S

IS1U3)) UonBH[IqRYSY WSI[OYOo]Y ISISaYOURIA PUe “oUj 908]d 191Sqap “ouf ‘Ajjeay Aouddy sopnjouf

00L8S6T0TS (Z60TErT) $ LTSO6L6C% T0Tvs8 $ - $  TBEOWV IS S6C99vC$ FCVeosc$ LS889659$

ZSELOLT = LT18°G8E 969°C = SLVT 9vST1 vOT € T1900¢ 1 uoneziowre pue uoyerddids
16L°T81 - 16L°Z81 - - - - - - JUSWSSISSe Xe} A1[19e]
- - - - - — - - - . uoisiaold 1qap peg
9IT9LI‘I (€z0°81) - 987°80¢ - ~ - - - £56°688 . 1s2193U]
9LLEY - €10°11 0€Z - 893 ws'e LE6'T 669°LT STIOQUR[[SSIUI pUe S99 ‘SPY

959°69¢ - 66S°LTT 869°1 - 0S8‘L TT6°L 8yL'8I 6€8°S1T , [ejual yuswdinba pue
-saseyomnd juswdinba Joury
6£8°0F - 6€£€°ST 0L8 - szl vZhT - 18022 suonduasqns pue san(g
091'SYT‘1 - ISLEILT SSHTI - - 99022 958°0L 7€€°896 S[enpIAIpUI 0} dUBISISSE O1310adS
vLS OLE - 6981 01L6 - vST'1 99191 AR ] LLO'891T S3uyosW pue SUOHUIAUOC))
£26'765°T (69 056°681 £98°8 - [5€°6¢ 1659 SE88I1 0v°1€2°T [oARIE

LTOLTT - (WARRY 44 - 655y 0LS‘6 6LY'E 058°L9 elpaw pue
: yromure ‘Funuiid apisinQ
SOP‘080°y - 6£6°€65°1 z08°6Y - 7688 768°891 80€°S8 TLS'L60T AouednooQ
v0O‘ET 1 - SE9°YE 08Z°1 - €L1T YANS £€0°T 09L‘0L Suiddiys pue a3e1soq
£LT°L98 - £LO'SYI ve6'e - 150°6 SvE9 $90°G1 S08‘v89 auoydaja,
vvT8L9°T - 606°1L8 6919 - S0€‘9 6vL61 199°€T ISP OSLT soyddng
TrL'LOS 6 (s00°€1¥°7) STI9LL'S SEET1T - 0Z8°82¢ S06°881 LEO'EES $T5°T86'9 599] [eUOISSaJOI
8Iv'esg9L ¢~ $ SPT'I6LTITS T1I8v¥S § - §  691°CS0‘T S SI666 TS  9E1°0L6'TS  006'v6r'8y $ sasuadxa pajejar pue saLrefes

el suoneu NIOX mnonodxuuo) “ouj _uqm_mH oc.az JuouL A ouEmmEdm
-ruig MIN ‘sjooyos apoy MON &
uoa._.m:

¥10T ‘1€ Isudny papuy lea g
SASNAIXH TYNOLLON(1A 40 INFWALV.LS DNILVAI'TOSNOD

STIAVIAISAAS ANV ‘DNI ‘TITHSIJAVH MAN STVIS YILSVE



op

I9JU9)) UOKEI[IGRYSY WSI|OYOO[Y I2ISSYIUBJA] PUB “dU] ade]J 191Sqap “ou] ‘Ajeay Aousdy sapn[ou]

¥907C5T96 ¢ (951500 $ F167¢C597lcs ECISewols - 8 J005IcT$ S099Cy1$ ¢te00ISE$ OVSSsceos
€LT68ST = £50°99¢€ 0.9t = PELT 898°¢ £6L CS0EITT
IPO°I1¢€ - IP0°11¢€ - - - - - -
959°€60°1 (sLz'1€) 8EE°61€ 102°9Z - - - - T6E6LL
¥79°66 - Y01‘vt ¥65°1 - STz ¥P0°E 796°C S69°LY
6£T°9ZY - 716's8 LSTL - S96°T1 6156 8v1‘61 8€6°T6C
L1T 6V - £5L91 08Z°1 - 9Tl 206"y 8¢€s 86V°C
16L°956 - ov1‘esSt S6S - - 8V9°C 098°L8 8YSTIL
8TS°16€ - S90¥E1 SOP11 - 899°1 91T YLELT 6L V1T
¥TT'€09°T - TLI‘161 915°01 - €IS'Ty $69C 919¥11 TIL1PTT
L66°6T1 - LLT 6T 61L°01 - 66Z°L 780°S 9€E'y ¥8TcL
SSH818°E - 0Z1°88¥°'1 £50°CS - 915°c8 600°8Z1 810°SS 6EL°T10°T
ILLPLL - 11L°0€ 806 - SSY'T ¥09°C 8251 S95°9L
865°TV8 - SPSIEl 685°9 - ¥98°L 198°¢ 8SH'SI 186°9L9
79 10L°T - OV OLL ovL‘9Z - LLIL £57°9 81042 ¥SO°LY8°1
8€1°022°6 (892°020°7) $96°€89°¢€ 055°8T1 - IL1°L61 LV 6% BLLCLS 1L¥°L09°9
896°€08°IL § - $ L10°L68°61$ 9LV'SSL $ - $ 695056 $ 98V‘T8I‘lI$ 909'T8STS PVIBSEVIVS
[el0L mﬁo_ﬁm: HI0A ﬁ:o_wooccoo “ouj pue[sp oﬁ.ﬂmz JUOULID A obnmcﬁdm
-rung MaN ‘sjooyos spoy MON &
kooudm

SISNIdXH TYNOILLONNA A0 LNHIWILV.LS ONILVAI'TOSNOD

€10T ‘1€ wsn3ny papuyg Jea g

SHIVIAISANS ANV "ONI ‘TIIHSJIVH MAN STVAS YALSVA

uoneziyoure pue uoneroaidag
JUSWISSISSE XB) A11[108,]
jsa103u]
SNOAUE||29SIW PUB S3J ‘SPY
[eual juswdmba pue
-saseyoind juswdinba Jour
suonduosqns pue san(g
S|ENPIAIPUL 0) 3dUE)SIsse JJ1vadg
s3unesw pue SUONIUIAUOCD)
[oARI],
BIPOW pue
yromure ‘Sununid apisino
Kouednaop
Suiddiys pue a8eysod
suoydsa],
saiddng

$33§ [BUOLSSIJOI4
sesuadxa paje[al pue saLe[es



Easter Seals

Easter Seals Board of Directors
Officers
¢ Chairman, Rick Davidson
¢ 1st Vice Chairman, Eileen Howard Boone
¢ 2nd Vice Chairman, Edward L. Wenzel
s Treasurer, Ralph F. Boyd, Jr
e Secretary, Nancy Goguen
Members
¢ Michael ). Boettcher, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
o Kim D. Dalgliesh, Esq., Newtown Square, Pennsylvania
o Kathleen C. Daly, Cincinnati, Ohio
¢ Elizabeth W. DeBiasi, Wilmington, North Carolina
e Ben Gamache, Manchester, New Hampshire
o Meg Ham, Salisbury, North Carolina
¢ JohnF. Jostrand, Chicago, Illlinois
o Joseph G. Kern, Orlando, Florida
o Fred ). Maabhs, Jr., Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
e John Maguire, Wilbraham, Massachusetts
¢ Nivine Megahed, Ph.D., Chicago Illinois
o Kimberly Michel, Los Angeles, California
e Franklin A. Poff, Jr., Texarkana, Texas

e Sandral. Towey, CPA, CMA, CFM, Minneapolis, Minnesota



Cynthia C. Wallace

Management Highlights
o Extensive management experience developing teams and facilitating on going training
and supervision. Designed curriculum, budgets and marketing for proprietary, corporate,
not-for profit organizations, and grant driven contracts.
¢ Designed and implemented training for family resource centers, corporate and independent early
childhood and parenting programs.
e Strong advocate for families, professionalism and quality improvement in early childhood settings
through training, coaching, mentoring, consultation to promote Best Practice.

Professional

Experience

Easter Seals NH Child Care Resource and Referral 2009 - present

Program Coordinator Manchester, Concord and Keene NH

Child Care Resource and Referrals Contract with the DHHS, CDB positions include Child Care
Specialist, Program Manager and Program Coordinator. In each role the contract Performance
Measures have either been on target or exceeded contract goals with strong Community Partnerships
in both Concord and Manchester.

Bright Horizons at Spring Street Stride Rite Corporation, Lexington, MA 2005 - 2009

Bright Horizons at Biue Cross Blue Shield, Quincy MA.

Director

Director for a relocated Blue Cross Blue Shield facility and new start corporate-community partnership
with Stride Rite Corporation. License capacity of 108 infants through six year olds.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, 2001 - 2005

Concord, NH

Operations Manager, NAEYC Accredited Program

Implemented the Head Start/Early Head Start expansion grant. Supervised and licensed a 3,000
square foot construction project designed to double enroliment and increase programs. Administered
Federal Performance Standards that serve the needs of 140 economically disadvantaged families.

Londonderry Children's Centre, Inc. 1982 - 2000

Londonderry, NH

Founder and President, NAEYC Accredited Program

Founded, managed and expanded high quality program for infants through school age children and
kindergarten. Through acquisition, rental and renovations that expanded to two locations for 130
children. These exemplary programs were noted for community partnerships and chosen as practicum
sites for early childhood education majors. Both locations were cited (1990 ~ 2000) as New Hampshire
Mentor Centers.



Cynthia C. Wallace 603.833.0004

‘Education

Evocative Coaching Certificate, 2012

NH Early Childhood Credential; Master Professional Endorsements:
Workshop Trainer, Individual Mentor, and Program Consultant

Certified Parenting Educator, Wheelock Graduate School, Boston, MA, 2000

B.S. Behavioral Sclence, Granite State College, Manchester, NH1992

A.S. Child Study, Lasell College, Aubumdale, MA 1968

Consultant and Trainer

Child Care Resource & Referral, Concord, Manchester, Keene, Laconia, Conway, Nashua
NH Alliance for Better Child Care

Caldarola Designs Associates, Inc. Derry, NH

Families First, Cambridge, MA

Family Foundations Network, Lowell, MA

NHAEYC & NEAEYC Conferences

Nutfield YMCA, Parents Invested in Kids, Londonderry, NH

Upper Room Center for Parenting Education, Derry, NH

Committees and Boards

EEIN of NH

Spark, NH Policy Committee

NH Early Childhood Science and Child Weifare Team

Member of Child Care Aware ® of New Hampshire (formery known as NH CCR&R Network)
NH State Board of Education, 2001-2005

Londonderry Kindergarten Building Commitiee

President of NHAEYC

NHAEYC Accreditation Liaison to NAEYC

NH Governors Commission on Child Care and Early Education
Good Beginnings Home Visiting, Londonderry/Derry, NH

Professional Recognition

Earty Childhood Champion, Early Leaming New Hampshire, 2011
Granite State College, Victor Montana Alumni of the Year 2003

NH Special Mentor of the Year 2000

NH Mentor Center 1990 -2000 (Londonderry Children’s Centre)
Validator and Mentor, NAEYC Academy of Early Childhood Programs
CDA Advisor, Council for Professional Recognition, NH and MA
NHAEYC Commitment to Quality, 1991

Page 2



Glenda West

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Child Care Resource and Referral Manchester, NH
Jan 06- Present
Bilingual Child Care Specialist

Coordinated and facilitated the Evidence Based Research Parent Training workshops titled
“Abriendo Puertas/Opening Doors” in Manchester. These 10 Spanish sessions encouraged parents
in their leadership and advocacy roles in the community and within their own family. Abriendo
Puertas afforded six parents with connections to community resources and provided information
on how to better support their young children for future academic success and improve their
children’s development skills. As a result of this initiative, Manchester now has a Spanish Parent
Support group hosted and facilitated by the Easter Seals Family Resource Center.

Recruit and support child care providers, which includes hosting various network-training
opportunities for child care providers to improve the quality of care provided to young children.
Also, deliver over 130 child care referrals quarterly in Spanish or English to families needing child
care in the Manchester area.

Collaborate with the Department of Human Health Services, local District Office and NH
Employment Program to assist families with scholarship information and quality child care
consumer education.

NH Child Care Resource and Referral Network representative for the Operation Military Kids
state committee. Coordinated efforts with child care programs and church organizations to collect
items for Hero Packs distributed to military kids. Created and presented with the Air National
Guard Youth Coordinator a workshop to inform Early Childhood Educators of the Stressors
involved with Military Families.

Bicentennlal Elementary/Broad Street School Nashua, NH
Nov 01-Jan 06
Paraprofessional/Substitute Teacher

Assisted and taught children from Preschool thru Grade 6 with learning disabilities, attention
deficit disorder, autism, down syndrome, and other social or mental challenges that impact
leaming. Created and implemented lesson plans for students and gathered information for
portfolios required by the state. Assisted teachers or administrator as needed to translate Spanish
translator or substitute teacher upon request.

Enabled fourth and fifth grade classrooms to acquire donated computers from a local business for
academic use and for identified children with developmental delays.

Creative Clubhouse Westford, MA
Mar 00-Mar 01
Pre-Kindergarten/Toddler Teacher/Spanish Instructor

Developed curriculum in English and Spanish, lessons included theme-related activities with art
projects, role-play, songs, and literature. Extracurricular Spanish was available to after-school
students enrolled at the clubhouse and Bicentennial Elementary School, as a volunteer.

Created an evaluation tool to monitor the academic, physical, and social progress that is utilized
during parent communication conferences or progress reports for each child. Developed age-
appropriate lesson plans and activities children enjoyed and leamed at the same time.

Initiated and organized a multi-cultural celebration (La Posada) that involved the entire center. A
great success for everyone involved!



Glenda West

La Ruta de Sonora Ecotourism Association Ajo, AZ
Sept 99-Dec99
Tour Coordinador
o Assembled and developed welcome packages for La Ruta Ecotours. Responded to clientele and
vendors to market product. Maintained a database of clientele for easy access and follow-up.
¢ Coordinated environmental and cultural educational Ecotours/travel arrangements between
Mexico and southern Arizona for environmental groups and interested individuals from the United
States.
¢ Processed two and three-day tour packages, ensuring all logistical arrangements were made in a
timely manner. Approximately 33 ecotour participants in a 90-day period.

Spanish Instructor Dayton, OH
Sept 93-Jun 99
Teacher (Volunteer)}
s Developed and introduced the first-ever basic conversational Spanish course to elementary grade
school students (Grades 1-6) in the Fairbomn, Ohio, Public School system
»  Provided private tutoring to 35 Home School students (Preschool through 10® grade) on the basics
of conversational Spanish

US Air Force Feb 85 — Aug 91
Social Actions/Personnel Officer
o Selected by CEO to evaluate and ensure all base administrative offices complied with Air Force
directives. Thirteen deficient programs of 28 total offices improved to satisfactory of higher
ratings.
o  Supervised a staff of four to efficiently manage and keep accurate personnel administrative
records in disciplinary actions, awards, education, and employee performance evaluations.
»  Assisted with the implementation of SAFE (Substance Abuse Formal Education) for individuals
identified with substance abuse issues. It was recognized and lauded as one of the best and
effective programs within the command.

COMPUTER SKILLS

Proficient with Microsoft Office, Word, Excel, Power Point, Access, and Publisher.

EDUCATION

MA, Interdisciplinary Counseling (18 Credit Hrs), 1986

Eastern Washington University

BA, Psychology, 1984 Child Care Course Diploma (1991)
Northern Arizona University Drug/Alcohol Abuse Control School (80s)
Magna Cum Laude Defense Equal Opportunity Management

NH Credentials: Early Childhood Master Professional Workshop Trainer and Consultant.

Professional Affiliations: NH Child Care Resource Referral Network, Organization of Day Care Providers
(ODCP) in Manchester, NH (Member at Large); and Operation Military Kids State Committee Member;
State Emergency Preparedness Task Force Member; and SPARK Family Engagement Task Force

References Available Upon Request



Karyn Yeatman

OBIJECTIVE
To contribute to the advancement and success of a program by applying my strong early
childhood, interpersonal, and communication skills.

PROFESSIONAL EXPEREINCE
Easter Seals Child Care Resource & Referral Manchester, NH 04/10-Present

Resource & Referral Specialist
Collaborate with community partners to provide referrals to children and family resources and
programs. Provide training and technical assistance to child care programs to improve quality,
administration, and systems. Additional responsibilities include:

¢ Collaborate with community partners

¢ Training development and assessment
¢ Create, schedule, and coordinate quarterly training calendars
¢ Actively participate in State leadership initiatives
» Plan, organize, and coordinate state conferences and local events
¢ Database management
» Grant management and reporting
e Production of marketing materials
VNA Child Care & Family Resource Center Manchester, NH 10/08-04/10

Program Manager/ Center Director
Managed and implemented daily operations and state licensure compliance for a multiservice
community based program serving over 150 high risk, low income families. Additional
responsibilities included:

e Managing staff development and implementing incentive programs to enhance morale

e Hiring, performance evaluations, corrective action plans for over 30 staff members
e Managing client relations to ensure satisfaction
¢ Planning center wide events to promote family involvement
¢ Conducting and attending meetings with community partners and granters
e Facilitating training for parenting group
Bedford Village Morning School Bedford, NH 3/07-4/08

Assistant Director/Director of Afternoon Enrichment Program/Lead Teacher
These position included curriculum development, implementation d assessment, problem solving
and overseeing staff. Managed customer relations by holding parent teacher conferences,
conducting program tours and creating newsletters.

¢ Developing and implementing preschool curriculum

e Implementing Hand Writing Without Tears

e P.Moony Literacy Program

e Coordinate center-wide events



TIowa Health Child Development Center Des Moines, IA 11/04-8/06
Teacher
¢ Developing and implementing preschool curriculum

¢ Developing student portfolios

e Conducting parent/teacher meetings

¢ Assisting director with scheduling for the center (28 staff)
Bedford Village Morning School Bedford, NH 8/03-6/04
Teacher

¢ Lead Teacher of Afternoon Program M, W, F
¢ (Co-Teacher in Lower Preschool T & TH
e Associate Teacher in Upper Preschool M, W, F

EDUCATION
Keene State College Keene, NH 2001

BA Communication
*] have more than the required number of credits per the licensing and credentialing
requirements for center director. Transcripts available upon request.

State of New Hampshire Credentials

Early Childhood Master Professional Workshop Trainer

Early Childhood Master Professional Individual Mentor

" Early Childhood Master Professional Program Consultant

Trainer

I am Moving I am Learning — A Proactive Approach for Addressing Childhood Obesity
NAEYC - Communication Skills for Challenging Conversation

Certified Consultant

NAP SACC - Nutrition and Physical Activity Self-Assessment for Child Care Programs
Worked with clients to assess, create, and implement policies and procedures around nutrition
and physical activity.

Marketing Chair for New Hampshire Child Care Aware® of New Hampshire
Creating marketing plan, materials, and improving visibility for Child Care Aware® of New
Hampshire

Computer SKkills
Proficient in Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Publisher

References
Excellent references available upon request



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Children, Youth and Families

Agency Name: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Name of Bureau/Section:

Annual Salary
Of Key :
Administrative | Percentage of Salary Paid &
Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Personnel By Contract
Larry Gammon, President & CEO $352,852 ’
Elin Treanor, CFO/COO $240,000
Tina Sharby, Chief Human Resources Officer $140,000
Arlene Kershaw, Sr VP Program Services $105,000

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Iltem 1 of Budget request)

[Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc),
and individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager,
etc). These personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name, itle,
annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from agreement.




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451
FAX: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner

Maggie Bishop

Director
April 4, 2013 _
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan G&C Approved
and the Honorable Council ?)

State House = — -~

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 Date <) \6 \

| tem# O
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth
and Families to enter into agreements with the following vendors to conduct Child Care
Resource and Referral services cavering all Division of Human Services catchment areas for an
aggregate amount not to exceed $2,030,000 from July 1, 2013 or date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015. Funds are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Years 2014-2015 upon the availability and continued
appropriations in future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further approval from Governor

and Executive Council.
" Jooth fED

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY

ASSURE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (Vendor #1 77189)

Class/ Title Catchment | Activity | opv 5514 | SFY2015|  Total
Account Area Code
Social Services T
102-500731 Contracts Berlin/Littleton | 40035201 $101,815| $101,815 $203,630
Social Services i
102-500731 Contracts Conway 40035201 57,655 57,655 115,310
- Social Services
102-500731 Contracts Rochester 40035201 124,610 124,610 249.,220
Sacial Services
102-500731 Contracts Seacoast 40035201 58,251 58,251 116,502
Social Services
102-500731 Contracts Southern 40035201 149,123 149,123 298,246
Total $491,454 | $491,454 $982,908




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3
April 4, 2013
Claremont School District (Vendor #177374)
Class/ - et Catchment Activity Py )
Account Title Area Code SFY 2014 | SFY 2015 Total
Social Services
102-500731 Contracts Claremont 40035201 $70,674 $70,674 $141,348
Total $70,674 $70,674 $141,348
Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. (Vendor # 177251 B002 )
Class/ Title Catchment | Activity | ooy o014 | sEY 2015 Total
Account Area Code °
) Social Services .
102-500731 Contracts Laconia 40035201 $81,833 | $81,833 $163,666
Total $81,833 $81,833 $163,666
Easter Seals of NH, Inc. (Vendor #177204)
Class/ - Catchment Activity
Account Title Area Code SFY 2014 | SFY 2015 Total
Social Services | : .
102-500731 Contracts Mapchester 40035201 $177,615 $177,615 $355,230
, Socjal Services o , o
102-500731 Contracts Concord 40035201 106,011 $106,011 $212,022
Social Services , -
102-500731 Contracts Keene 40035201 87,413 $87,413 $174,826
Total $371,039 $371,039 $742,078
Grand Total $1,015,000 $1,015,000 $2,030,000
EXPLANATION

These Federal funds support preventive child care. services and the scholarship child
care payment system. A requirement of this funding is that it be used to increase the
availability, accessibility, and quality of child care programs throughout the State. This is
accomplished through numerous activities including the provision of child care resource and
referral services for consumers and providers.

Child care resource and referral services are provided statewide by Division for
Children, Youth and Family catchment area. Services include high quality referrals and
consumer education for parlies seeking matches with child care providers, free and/or low cost
professional development opportunities for child care providers, and providing current and
aspiring child care providers with technical assistance in the areas of licensing, best practice,
and accreditation. The services also provide the Department, local, and national organizations,
agencies, policy makers, public officials, businesses, and community members with accurate
data and information related to Early Childcare Education issues.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council :

Page 3 of 3

April 4, 2013

Should Governor and Council not authorize this request, federal sanctions could result

in the reduction in federal funds to support the Child Care Scholarship Program resulting in
financial hardship for families dependent on subsidized child care and the inability of some
families to find child care that will help them continue working.

This contract is awarded as the result of a competitive bid process. On September 4,
2012 and again on December 21, 2012 the Division issued a Request for Proposal for Child
Care Resource & Referral programs to serve the ten (10) District Office catchment areas in the
State of New Hampshire. These Request For Proposals were published on the Department's

web site.

Six agencies submitted bids for the ten (10) District Office catchment areas; four agencies were
awarded contracts that cover all catchment areas. An evaluation committee reviewed the
proposals submitted in response to the RFP. The evaluation team’s scoring summaries are -
attached to this letter (Appendix A). The vendors identified in the tables above submitted
proposals that achieved higher minimum scores than any other vendor proposal(s) for the glven
catchment area(s) and were, therefore awarded the contract.

Performance under this agreement will be measured by the Performance Measures and
Outcomes specified in the Agreement to include successfully providing referrals to New
Hampshire Employment Program participants, and Financial Assistance to Needy Families
(FANF) recipients in need of child care, recruiting new child care providers, including those that
shall fill opportunities for specific kinds of care e.g. infant/toddler, bilingual, special needs, and

non-traditional hours.

Areas Served: The Division for Children, Youth and Families catchment areas of
Berlin/Littleton, Conway, Rochester, Seacoast, Southern, Claremont, Laconia, Manchester,

Concord, and Keene.
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds.

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
" requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

ishop

Maggie
Director

Approved By:b-m

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission 1s to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Average 1

17.0
1.5
12.3

8.3

1.0
62.0
6.2

120
118
128
14.0
113
AN}
5.4
17.0
13.3
150
1.5
. 133
Y
WL
17.0
1.8

133
13.0
58

18.2

9.3

140

Scorer 3 - Susan Folay, Program Specialist i, Chita Dx
Scorer 4 - John Harvington, Contract Speclaist, DHHS
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Bldder 1= 12830
Bidder 2=, 15020
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piddera= 00

. u_nu...‘ w 2572
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00

RFP ¥10- B-RR-10 Child Care Resource & Referval Program ! | ]
Ciaremont 0.0, Catchment Area R&R Tabulated Evaluation Form Scorer 1 - K.Booth Scorer 2 - £ Wheatley Scorer 3 - 8, Foley: Scorer 4 - J. Harrington Scorer 8 -
egories NHGAA] CSO |BId 3]Bid4 [NHCAA TSD |Bid 3 |Bid 4 |NHCAA C8D |Bid 3]81d 4 |[NHCAA] CSO |Bid 3 [Bid4 | Bid 1] Bid 2BId Id 4
Overall Review . up to 20 points each criteria {value 10% of _o:: i}
3 | Conformily in form and format (o instructions contained in the RFP 16.0 | 16.0 200 1 180 150 | 16.8 180 | 15.0 .
b [Servicas proposed in responsa 10 proposal specificat 14.0 | 10.0 120 | 150 13.0 § 150 150 | 15.0
€ lQualifications and adequacy of staffing 12,0 '} 140 120 | 120 15.0 | 15.0 10.0 | 15.0
=
d oemonsirated capacity of the agency to implement the program 80 | 120 100 | 120 0.0 | 120 150 | 15.0
@ [Cosl effectivenass of proposal 10.0 | 18.0 120 | 160 |. 10.0 | 18.0 12,0 | 15.0
“subfotal overali review] 62.0 | 68.0 ] 6.0 | 0.0 | €6.0 | 72.0 ] 00 § 0.0 | 63.0 | 720] 001 0.0 | 7.0 | 760 ] 0.0 [ 00 ] 0.0 00 { 0.0 { 0.0
! subtotal st 10%| 6.2 68 § 00 0.0 6.6 T.2 0.0 0.0 5.3 7.2 | 0.0) 0.0 6.7 7.5 00 | 0.0 0.0 001 00 0.0
Experionce - up to 20 points each criteria (value 26% of total) i :
3 {past experiance of the Biader in providing this o¢ a similar secvics 16,0} 200 100! 200! 100] 150 1201 150
D | past experiance of the Bidder in working with the chiid care community and parent population 12.0] 20.0; 10.01 20.0 10.0f 20.0 150 150
€ |Demonsirated capacity 1o provide servicas within the catchment area 18.0] 16.0 10.0: . 15.0 10.0f 15.01 18,01 150
9 fDemonstrated ability 1o work with the Depariment 18.0{ 18.0] 15.01 16.0 10.0f 16.0 15.0{ 150
[ ‘agency 10 cany
@ lout the proposed service within the required Ume-rames 10.0} 18.0 10.0] 14,0 10.0] 15.0 15.0] 150
N (LA RLAAMAY U0} 55.0] Lo RS R A EEAGA KA WA MREL A S A LS S A A A
Ex Y751 2.5 0.0 VU o8] 2131 00} U0} 1L5 AAMAA WUA RS LA L2 LA A LA A
Program Description - up to 20 points sach 2:2..- (value 28% of total ‘- i
Presentation of 8 compiele and gelan pton, thatls lwﬂ \nﬂﬂ.lmw
2 | goes not simply restate the language of 5. zmv 20,0 10.0, 18.0] 140 15.0] 15.0 15.0] 15.0
Y |presentation of a preliminary work plan including a reslistic timatine for project impk tati 10,0 14.0 18.0] 16.0 10.0| 20.0 18.0] 150
© [ Presentation of an outreach plan to maximize uliization of services within the caichment srea 20.0| 140 15.0] 15.0 10.0| 20.0 15.0] 150
1 o
4 1ciear pian 1o develop that abliity witrin a reasonabie time frame 14,01 12,0 10.0] 120 15,0y 13.0 15,0] 5.0
Presenialion of a clearly slated evalualion process and quanifiable outcome measures at
@ | acceptable lavels for both Lhe recruitmant 8nd training porions of the program 18.0] 120 50| 130 150] 150 15.0] 15.0
sublotal program description| 840 bZU| V.U 1241 O 70.0) U0 U0 5507 9301 0.0 U0 7501 7501 U0l U0 U0l VU] OU{ VU
EEx A RAE LAY LA RAZ BRLAT KA A IR L 0 A A L L A 2R S8 A A
Cost and Resources . up to 20 points each criteria (value 30% of totai) : L
8 {The accuracy and completeness of the budget and budget narative 18.0 12,0 20.0] 15.0 ' 15.0{ 15.0 15.0] 1590
® I'The acceptability of the tine ilem costs as detailed In the budget r i 12.0{ 14.0 10,0f 15.0! 10.0} 15.0 15.0] 15.0
€ |A cost efleciive approach 10 providing the v..ovouon sefvica 100 120 18,0} 15.0 10.0] 18,0 15.0f 15.0
d | Statf resources of the Bidder to efisciively administer and oparaie tha program 12,0] 16.0 *m..o 14.0 10.0f 15.0 15.0{ 150
o |Ability to obtain financial and addilional resourcas from other sources to support this program 80| 120{ 0.0 14.0 00| 100 15.0] 150
aublotal costand resources| 60.0] 60| 0.0 630[_73.0]_00]_00] 4&0| 73.0] ool 6ol 78.0] 750] 00] 00| 00| o0l 00l oo
{ cost and ¢ 8t 30%]| 13.0] 19.8] 0.0 18.9) 21.9] 0.0] 00| 13.5] 21.9] 0.0} 0. 225] 2257 o0.0] o0.0] oo] oo o] oo
_{Other - up to 20 vo_s.udxn::n. value 10% of total ¥ - . ) N . .
Trealive fesponse 1o meeling the Unique (o848 of The Gommun v -
nl limited to, English proficiency and cultural diversity 10.0{ 12,0 20| 14.0 10.0f 150 15.0] 150
b 18.0{ 8.0 10,0} 120 150 15.0 1501 15.0
I [Fia
¢ v:n_scnmou and locel o:ﬁ.o?a 16.0] 200 15.0f 150 15.0| 200 15,01 15.0
9 | Evidenca of coliaboration with other agencies within the community 40| 16.0 80| 15.0 10.0{ 20.0 150{ 150
TUSOHTUTa DIATIO0Y 1 . » - o
e snity members (including agencies, poficy makers, public officials, and businesses) in the 16.0 12.0 200 180 15.0{ 20.0 15.0] 15.0
‘subtotal other] 62.0 €8.0] 0.0 0.0 55.0 0.0] o.0] 65.0) 900] 00] 00 75.0) 75.0 0.0 0.0 0.0) 0.0] o0 0.0
subtotal other at 10% 8.2 68] 001 0.0 - 55 K a.0 6.5 901 o00] 00 1.5 7.5 0.0§ 0.0 0.0 0.0}l 00| 0.0
Grand Towl| 3360} 354.0) 0.0} ° 0.0]-3050 0.0] 170.0| 399.0] 00] 00] 3sd0] 370l ool 00| oo] oo 00| oo
Grand Totatat Percentage |  68.4} 71.4] o00] oo] “e1sl 763] 0.0l 00| s44] 79.4] oof ool 7seE| 7s.0f 00| 00| oo o] o0] o0
R dati Cls School District :
Scorer 1 - Krislin Booth, Program Speclalist IV, Chid Development Bureau .
Scorer 2 - Ellen Wheatiey, Adminisirator, Child Development Bureay Tolal Score Scom @ %

Avarage 2

16.0
13.8
140
12.8

153
[AR:]
1.2

175
188
153

16.3

15.0
yeu
0.7

16.3

16.0

1.8
.5
191

143
148
15.0

150

128
71.8
1.5

14.0
125
175
16.5

16.3
76.8
7.7

303.8
75.2

Total 8id Sums Claremont1
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/)9)

Subject: Child Care Resource & Referral Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS )
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address
) 129 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
Division for Children, Youth and Families v
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
555 Aubum Street
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Manchester, NH 03103
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number 05-95-42-421110-29780000-
603-621-3463 : 102-500731-40035201 6/30/2015 $742,078.00
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
John Harrington 603-271-9540
L11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
(A= Elin Treanor, Chief Financial Officer

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of_ NH, County of Hillsborough

On 513413 before the undersigned officer, personal]y appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or i € Peace

T EEREN Vo VY f)m/@aw\ Py

| 1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace d
DIANE L. BOULAY, Notary Public
My Cemmission Expires September 3, 2013

114  State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

//}7 4/274:( 5%9 e 4) Maggie Bishop, Director

1.16 ﬁApproval by the N.H. Departme‘;lt of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: : Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

T AN ' .
By: mfj‘c/ Y2 e AL 7,’/{""/7""'1 On: A -

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council -

1 By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”). ’

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement. ‘

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

. — ’/
Contractor Initials:
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
_8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defauit, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Page 3 of 4

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE. v

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

er
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ceniﬁcate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION. B
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default, No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express: their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein

shall in no way be held to explain, medify, amplify oraidin. = . .

the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to

. be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining

provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

—_
Contractor Initials: Z /
Date: ,EZE 22@/



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

DATE: March 18, 2013

CONTRACT: CC Resource and Referral Programs for DCYF Manchester;Concord and
Keene catchment areas

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR NAME: Easter Seals New Hampshire_ Inc.

ADDRESS: 555 Auburn St_reet

Manchester, NH 03103

TELEPHONE: 603-623-8863

REPRESENTATIVE: Elin Treanor
TITLE: Chief Financial Officer

1. Provisions Applicable To All Services
The Contractor hereafter agrees:

1.1 That, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General Court or Federal or
State court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State has the
right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Contract so as to
achieve compliance therewith, in which event the price limitations for such Service(s) shall be
renegotiated;

1.2 To use its best efforts to apply for any and all appropriate public and private sources of funds
that are applicable to the funding of the Services described herein. Appropriate records shall
be maintained by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of funding from
such sources of funds;

1.3 To complete the full scope of services in Exhibit A; and

1.4 To serve families and providers in the Manchester, Concord and Keene District Office (DO)
catchment areas (hereinafter “catchment areas”) in need of child care resource, referral,
recruitment, and/or educational training.

2. Services To Be Provided:
2.1 Perform the services of this contract in accordance with the following program goals:

a. Ensure that high quality, culturally competent, Child Care Resource & Referral (CCR&R)
services are known and accessible to the widest possible number of families, providers,
businesses and community members within the catchment areas, inciuding services to
limited English proficient families and providers, and in consideration of a variety of

diversity issues;

78
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b. Serve as a resource of data and information regarding early care and education (ECE);

c. Provide high quality referrals and consumer education to families seeking child care
including but not limited to families receiving NH child care scholarship funds or who are

on a wait list to do so;

d. Prioritize the accessibility of high quality care within the catchment areas through targeted
technical assistance to child care providers to improve quality for families receiving child
care scholarship funds.

e. Positively impact the quality of child care within the catchment areas by providing
professional development for child care providers, which is focused on the Early Childhood
Core Knowledge Areas. '

f. Use technology as appropriate and feasible for purposes that may include, but not be
limited to providing referrals and consumer information to families, training to child care
providers, attending meetings, and information dissemination.

Outreach
2.2 Outreach to the catchment areas by:

a. Operating offices located within each of the catchment areas. Office hours shall be 8:30-
4:30, Monday through Friday and shall be publicized in all correspondence. Walk-ins shall
be welcomed as well as clients seeking services via phone calls;

b. Providing a toll free number to allow families and providers access to services. This
number shall have voicemail that gives the caller hours of operation, the address of the
Child Care Aware of NH website, and the option to leave a message for a call back from
the CCR&R Specialist. All calls shall be returned within 24 hours on normal business days,
Monday-Friday;

c. Being accessible by e-mail. CCR&R e-mail addresses are printed on all correspondence
that is given out to families, providers, and community members; :

d. Utilizing the Internet and e-mails to provide clients with referrals, share important updates
and information with providers. Families shall be able to access CCR&R information via
the Child Care Aware® of NH website at: www.nh.childcareaware.org.

e. Maintaining a strong, working relationship with the staff of the catchment areas DCYF
District Offices, the New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP), Workplace Success
Program, Family Resource Center and the Working Futures Program. CCR&R shall attend
all NHEP Orientations for FANF clients and shall make regular visits to the catchment
areas local District Office (DO). CCR&R shall be available via phone, e-mail or in-person
to work closely with these afore mentioned entities to make sure that the needs of all
families, including families receiving FANF, are being met; -

f. Attending all NHEP Orientations where participants attending have children under the age
of thirteen (13) years old. At each orientation, the NHEP participants receive information
that shall inciude, but not be limited to, information on quality indicators of chi_(d care,

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Contractor Initials: c’l

Child Care Resource and Referral Services: Manchester, Concord and Keene District Offices
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interviewing a child care provider and children’s growth, and development. If an NHEP
participant or DO client cannot access services of the CCR&R via phone or e-mail,
CCR&R is able to provide an onsite referral at the NHEP office or the DO;

g. Provide targeted technical assistance (TA) to child care programs-to improve quality
through consultation, coaching and mentoring. Required focus areas for TA are Early
Leamning Guidelines, Strengthening Families, Emergency Preparedness, and Teacher
Competency. Areas of TA shall include but not be limited to health and safety, infant,
toddler, and preschool care, inclusion, teaching dual language leamers, understanding
developmental screenings and/or observational tools for program improvement purposes,
and business management purposes.

h. Establishing within 80 days of this contract, a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the
catchment areas local Family Resource Center (FRC), which shall include referring clients
to each other's programs and use of FRC space for provider trainings. The MOA shall also
include an understanding that FRC staff are invited to all trainings provided by CCR&R
and all staff from CCR&R can participate in trainings offered by the FRC that would be
beneficial to the professional development of CCR&R staff:

i. Establishing and maintaining a strong working relationship with the Child Development
Bureau (CDB). Representative from each CCR&R catchment area shall attend monthly
meetings of the CCR&R Network, Child Care Aware® of NH and the catchment areas
CCR&R manager shall meet with the Child Care Program Improvement Specialist as
scheduled during site visits. Catchment areas CCR&R shall also contact the CDB when
needed for technical assistance and is available to answer any questions or needs CDB
staff may have; '

j- On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report on the following performance
measures, by catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The number of on-site targeted technical assistance visits to providers: center,
licensed, licensed family, licensed exempt family child care, and potential providers

k. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the following other data, by
catchment area, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The number of visits made to the DOs and NHEP offices and the nature of those visits;
and

(2) The number of NHEP Orientations attended and the number not attended along with
the reason why the Orientation was not attended or held. -
Resource

2.3 Serve as a resource to the catchment areas by:

a. Serving as a community resource for DHHS, local and national organizations, agencies,
policy makers, public officials, businesses, and community members in the area of data
and information regarding child care issues including, but not limited to supply and
demand. CCR&R shall be available to provide resource information at local events within
the catchment areas;

T
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Contractor Initials:
Child Care Resource and Referral Services: Manchester, Concord and Keene District Offices

Exhibit A Scope of Services ' . /
Page 3 of 14 Date: b/)l') ﬂ"/f



b.

Collecting data and assisting the Program Improvement Specialist in maintaining an up to
date National Association of Child Care Resource and Referral Agencies (NACCRRA)
Suite of Data Services (SDS) statewide database. This database shall be updated no less
than annually. The CCR&R Specialist shall complete at least 80%,.in most cases more
than 80%, of the standardized data fields in the provider, client and community profiles for
the catchment areas in the statewide database. The CCR&R profiles in the statewide
database shall contain information on:

(1) Child care programs in the CCR&R catchment areas shall include licensed child care
centers, licensed family child care providers, and legally operating license-exempt
providers, and shall include faith-based programs; '

(2) Data from each family requesting a child care referral as to the type of care they are
seeking, hours of care that is needed, locations of care needed, and any special needs
with which the family needs assistance; and

(3) Business and community contacts that are recorded in the community section of the
database. These contacts include other social service agencies, local officials and
policy makers, and potential child care providers that the CCR&R works with towards
becoming a legally operating child care provider;

‘Publishing and distributing a quarterly newsletter that is sent to all child care providers in

the NACCRRAware database, local community partners, and potential child care providers
who are on the CCR&R mailing list. The newsletter shall:

(1) Inform child care providers of updates from the CDB, the Child Care Licensing Unit
and other CDB contractors, policy issues in child care (both state and national),
upcoming local, statewide and national trainings, conferences, workshops, upcoming
ECE classes, lists resources for providers, includes a copy of Child Care Aware's
“Daily Parent” for providers to copy and share with families, and the quarterly training
calendar of upcoming free trainings for counties in the catchment areas; and

(2) Be distributed via US mail and e-mail, to all child care providers in each of the CCR&R
catchment areas, the CDB and other state entities, and to potential child care
providers in the community section of the database. CCR&R shall charge a fee for any
for-profit entity to advertise in a hard copy of the CCR&R newsletter. All fees collected
for advertisements shall be used to meet the goals of this contract. No more than one
page or 10% of the entire newsletter can be devoted to for-profit advertising. The
frequency of for-profit advertising shall be at the sole discrepancy of the contracted
agency. All electronic or regular correspondence regarding for-profit entities shall
include the following statement, "This advertisement does not necessarily represent
the views of the NH Department of Health and Human Services, the Division for
Children, Youth and Families, or the Child Development Bureau;”

CCR&R shali list all trainings offered for providers on the Child Care Aware® of America
website at www.nh.childcareaware.org. CCR&R shall update and/or edit trainings on the
Child Care Aware® of NH website on a monthly basis. In addition to the website posting,
training calendars shali be included in the CCR&R newsletter that specifically list trainings
offered by CCR&R. The CCR&R newsletter reports other statewide and national trainings
available to child care providers that meet Child Care Licensing and Credential criteria
including. Training updates shall be shared with providers on a regular basis via e-mail,
phone, and mail; and ~2 //~
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e. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the following other data on a
quarterly basis for each of the catchment areas:

(1) The number of providers whese information was updated and whether or not it was a
full or partial update;

(2) Responses to the request from DHHS or inform the CDB in its quarterly report when
they have responded to such a request; and

(3) The date the quarterly newsletter was e-mailed or mailed.
Referral
2.41 Refer families to providers by:
a. Maintaining a precise and up to date NACCRRAware statewide database of providers and
child care options in the CCR&R catchment area and by providing referrals to families via

in-person, over the phone, by e-mail, or via the child Care Aware® of NH Network website
at www.nh.childcareaware.org;

b. Providing free consumer education materials on quality indicators, licensing information,
child growth and development, types of child care, checklists, interviewing child care
providers, tax credits for child care, other possible community resources, and subsidies
available for child care assistance, in addition to the actual child care referral. All materials
and the child care referral will be delivered following the Criteria for Best Practices set forth
in NACCRRA's Quality Assurance Program,;

c. Referring families to child care providers at no charge to the families. CCR&R shall
provide the best match for each individual family's needs and preferences. Each family
shall receive a minimum of three but no more than fifteen options for child care that will
include both licensed and legally license-exempt options, including faith-based programs if
applicable to that family’s request. CCR&R shall also provide referral options outside the
CCR&R catchment areas, using the statewide database.

d. Providing families seeking child care referrals a verbal consultation upon intake of referral
and a written resource packet in person, via email, or via US.Mail. This referral packet will
include consumer education information on child care programs-quality indicators,
licensing information, types of child care, checklists, interviewing child care providers, tax
credits for child care, and subsidies available for child care assistance, as well as
information about the CCR&R and free services available to families.

e. Working closely with the NHEP Employment Counselor Specialists (ECS) at the NH
WORKS office, the local DO staff, and the Child Care Program Improvement Specialist
from the CDB to make sure that the child care needs of families being served by the NH
DHHS are being met. This shall include regular site visits to both the DO and NHEP and
attendance at all NHEP Orientations and visits with the CDB’s Child Care Program
Improvement Specialist as scheduled;

Southern New Hampshire Services, Ine. Contractor Initials: _
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f. Assisting NHEP clients:

(1) In obtaining and securing child care services as soon as-possible by providing child
care referrals in a prompt and timely manner and giving each NHEP client consumer
education information on choosing quality care;

(2) By providing child care referral services at, or in the vicinity of, the NH WORKS office if
necessary to do so or at the CCR&R office or via phone or e-mail; and

(3) Answering and responding to requests from the NHEP participant or NHEP ECS to
provide one-on-one counseling on conducting a child care search and by providing
each client with a resource packet that will assist and educate them in the process of
selecting quality child care;

g. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report on the following performance
measures, by catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The total number of families receiving referrais;
(2) The number of families receiving referrals with CCR&R assistance; and
(3) The number of FANF clients assisted by the CCR&R,;

h. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the following other data, by
catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The number of families receiving referrals via the web;

(2) The number of new families served;

(3) The number of previous families seeking new information that were served; and
(4) The number of families served through the DO; and

i. Following all current Division of Family Assistance and Department of Health and Human
Services confidentiality policies.

Wait List

2.42 Conduct wait list activities that assist families who are eligible to receive NH child care
scholarship funds, but who are on or released from a wait list to secure child care services
as soon as possible utilizing the following process:

Prioritize providing referrals to families going on the Wait List and/or coming off of the Wait
List:

a. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the foilowing other data, by
catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

-7 //
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(1) The number of families going on the wait list receiving referrals; and

(2) The number o_f families released from the wait list receiving referrals;

Follow-up
2.43 Follow-up surveys shall be completed via telephone, via email or US Mail to families
receiving child care réferrals in each quarter to achieve follow-up response from at least
20% of the clients served in each quarter. The survey will help the CCR&R Specialist to
determine if families have found care that meets their needs and to establish if the program
meets the needs of their family. Specific and direct emphasis shall be placed on
determining whether families on FANF and the wait list have had their needs met.

a. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report on the following performance
measures, by catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The percent of families successfully surveyed;
(2) The percent of families surveyed who were successful in finding care;

(3) The percent of FANF families who were surveyed who were unsuccessful in finding
care; and

(4) The percent of families. who had all of their child care needs met by the care they
chose;

b. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the fdllowing other data, by
catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The total number of clients assisted by the CCR&R;

(2) The number of FANF clients assisted by the CCR&R;

(3) The number of follow-up attempts‘made;

(4)‘ The number of families satisfied with the care they found;
(5) The number of families that chose not to use care;

(6) The number‘of families whose search was still in process;
(7) The number ofv families who were unable to locate care;

(8) Any child care needs of the family that were not met by their child care choice or
options;

(9)The number of families who chose care from the referral list(s) they received from the

CCR&R;
(10)The number of families who found the referrals they received helpful;
97
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(11)The number of families who found the consumer education they received over the
phone helpful;

(12)The number of families who found the written or posted consumer education they

" received or accessed helpful;

(13)The number of families who report they were able to identify indicators of quality in
child care programs; and

(14)The number of families who report that the CCR&R services were culturally
competent.

Recruitment
2.5 Recruit child care providers through targeted technical assistance by:

Providing targeted technical assistance to providers to fill the unmet child care needs in the
catchment areas including, but not limited to, infant care, specials needs care, and child care
during non-traditional hours; as well as other specific types needed in the above listed catchment
areas as indicated by the CCR&R's follow up data. Providers should be responsive to a variety of
diversity issues within the catchment areas to be served.

a. Reviewing follow-up sheets from families served each quarter to determine their unmet
needs and use this information to continue to recruit providers to meet these needs.

b. Contacting new license exempt providers as identified by the CDB,;

c. Informing and making licensed providers aware of the opportunity to provide Preventive
and Protective care by becoming certified in such. CCR&R shall give all interested
providers the contact information necessary to pursue this valuable certification;

d. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report on the following performance
measures, by catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The number of new providers added to the database, including licensed and license
exempt providers; .

(2) The number of new child care opportunities created by new and existing providers;

The number of providers who receive targeted technical assistance to change or expand their
programs to meet identified needs of infant/toddler care, special needs care and non-traditional
hours care

e. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the following other data, by
catchment areas, on a quarterly basis:

(1) The number of child care providers who closed permanently;

(2) The number of child care opportunities lost by provider closings; and
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(3) The number of net child care opportunities gained or lost.

. Training

2.61 Assure quality training options are available by:

Providing Child Care Basics, Preventing Child Abuse and Neglect (PCAN), Emergency
Preparedness, and Strengthening Families trainings that are free of charge. Other trainings may
incur a nominal charge. All training shall be accessible to all legally operating child care providers
in their catchment area.

a. Offering trainings that address the Core Knowledge Areas as defined in the publication,
the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional Development System. The Core
Knowledge Areas that each training covers shall be identified in the training calendar
listing the training that each provider receives, the Certificate of Attendance, and stated to
the providers at the beginning of each training. CCR&R will offer trainings throughout the
contract period that addresses all of the Core Knowledge Areas;

b. Having the discretion to offer a light breakfast or lunch for trainings that extend more than
4 hours. For trainings that extend 6 hours or more CCR&R may offer both a light breakfast
and lunch. A small fee to cover the cost of the meal(s) is appropnate as long as providers
have the choice to not pay the fee and bring their own food;

c. Utilizing a variety of credentialed presenters that are hired for the training workshops to
avoid presenting a singular perspective or showing preference to a particular presenter;

d. Not paying CCR&R staff a consultant fee to teach a workshop in the catchment areas, as
providing workshops in their own area is a core service required by CCR&R,;

e. If extenuating circumstances arise, paying staff a consulting fee, for teaching a workshop
in the catchment areas upon receiving prior written approval from the CDB. An extenuating
circumstance may include, but not be limited to: long travel distances, lack of available
qualified presenters, or limited regular working hours;

f. Working and collaborating with Child Care Aware® of NH to annually review the Child
Care Basics trainings, which shall result in a standardized set of Child Care Basic
trainings;

g. Updating and keeping current the Child Care Basic training workshop kit assigned to the
CCR&R;

h. Providing the trainings listed in Attachment B within each of the catchment areas;

i. Informing and educating child care providers on how to access college courses and
funding opportunities for tuition assistance that is available through the CDB:

j- Maintaining working relationships with the CDB and other contractors to maximize the use
of training funds by coilaborating with and co-sponsoring training events. CCR&R shall
pool resources with partners and work to provide funding to child care providers to attend
relevant trainings as needed;

<
. . - 9
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k. Working with contractors, the CDB, and other corhmunity tiraining resource partners to
plan and implement trainings that will meet the needs of providers in the catchment areas:

I.  On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report on the followmg performance
measures on a quarterly basis for each of the catchmernt areas: -

(1) The number of Child Care Basics trainings offered;

(2) The number of attendees at Child Care Basics trainings;

(3) The number of other trainings offered; and

(4) The number of attendees at other trainings offered by the CCR&R; and

m. On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the followmg other data on a
quarterly basis for each of the catchment areas:

(1) The number of collaborative trainings;

(2) A list of the specific workshops offered including: the date, location (town), the
presenter, their credential, and the number of attendees; and

(3) The dates that each of the required trainings are offered.

Technical Assistance
2.62 Provide targeted technical assistance by:

a. Playing an instrumental role with child care providefs in the catchment areas regarding
support and technical assistance in identified areas. CCR&R shali:

Assist child care providers in the development of their Emergency Preparedness plans, as well as
provide suggestions for staff training and encourage practice opportunities such as emergency
drills.
(1) CCR&R shall record in the NACCRRAware database all providers who have
completed these trainings and have Emergency Preparedness plans in place by
conducting regular follow-up calls to providers to check on their progress in this

important area;

(2) Supporting new and currently operating license exempt providers in their efforts to
become licensed providers that increase the number of child care opportunities
available;

(3) Supporting new and existing child care providers who are beginning to self-assess
their program quality in hopes of achieving DHHS Licensed-Plus designation. CCR&R
shall offer trainings and workshops needed for this certification, i.e. NH Early Learning
Guidelines, as well as offer resources and other technical assistance as needed to
support child care providers in this improvement process;

-
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(4) Utilize the Strengthening Families Program self-assessment tool with child care
programs to assess program strengths and provide targeted TA to increase program
strengths; and

(5) Utilize the NH Infant Toddler and Preschool Competencies to assess child care -

program staff teacher competency and provide targeted TA to improve teacher
competency.

Supporting, encouraging, and assisting child care providers and other early childhood
professionals to apply for the approprate level Early Childhood Professional Credential.

On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report on the following performance
measures on a quarterly basis for each of the catchment areas:

(1) The number of providers assisted in the licensing process;
(2) The number of new credentials awarded; and
(3) The number of credentials renewed.

On Attachment C or a similar form provided by CDB, report the following other data on a
quarterly basis for each of the catchment areas:

(1) The number of times targeted TA is provided to improve Strengthening Families
program assessment results. .

(2) The number of times targeted TA is provided to improve teacher competency.

(3) The number of providers who receive targeted TA to become licensed.

(4) The number of times targeted TA is provided for Licensed Plus.

(5) The number of times targeted TA is provided for accreditation.

Evaluation

2.63

a.

Evaluate the performance of CCR&R services by:

Ensuring that all participants attending CCR&R workshops or trainings complete an
evaluation of said training that assesses the knowledge and skills of the trainer, any new
information learned, how the participant will use that new information to increase the
quality of care they provide to families and children, whether or not they (the participants)
were satisfied with the trainer and the training, the usefulness of the training and
suggestions for upcoming trainings that they (the participants) would like to see offered;

Compiling feedback given via the workshop evaluations from participants to plan future
trainings based on child care provider needs; and

Surveying providers once a year to assess the delivery of CCR&R services. These
surveys shall be delivered to child care providers via the newsletter, e-mail, and mail and
will evaluate CCR&R services in the areas of referrals given, data provided to
parents/families, ease of updating data process, trainings offered, trainings needed, and
the cultural competence of the CCR&R services. Data needed to evaluate CCR&R'’s
training services shall also be obtained from workshop evaluations completed by

participants in the trainings. . '(L///

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Contractor Initials:
Child Care Resource and Referral Services: Manchester, Concord and Keene District Offices

Exhibit A Scope of Services / '
P Date: 5 /}D //?)/5

Page 11 of 14



shall not be asked to translate or interpret. 1f no bilingual worker or in-house interpreter is
available, the CCR&R shall make arrangements to obtain an outside interpreter. An LEP
person shall not be required to pay for the services of an interpreter. If appropriate for the
catchment area, written materials and tralmng shall also be made avallable in Ianguages
other than English;

. Designate a staff person from the catchment areaé to liaison with the CDB to:

(1) Attend monthly meetings with the CDB;

(2) Coordinate activities, working with the Child Care Program Improvement Specialist, the
Child Care Training Specialist, and the Credential Specialist,

(3) Maintain the statewide NACCRRA SDS;

(4) Obtain input and feedback from child care providers when policy, Child Care
Scholarship Program, and quality enhancement initiatives are being revised; and

(5) Evaluate CCR&R services;

Require current criminal background checks and central registry screenings of its staff.
The results of such background checks and screenings shall be shared with the
Department and the Department reserves the right to reject the Contractor's staff as a
result of such background checks; and :

May set aside professional development funds to allow staff to attend at least one national
conference or symposium per contract cycle to further their expertise in providing CCR&R
services.

4. Performance Measures:

a.

CCR&R catchment areas shall meet their goals of the performance measures in this
contract as documented in Attachments A-1, A-2, A-3, A4, and A-5. The Department
reserves the right to amend each Attachment after consultation with -Easter Seals, Inc.

5. Provide records and reports for the catchment areas including:

a.

d.

Quarterly and annual reports with outcome statistics for each of the performance
measures and other data reports indicated on Attachments A-1 thru A-5 for the respective
catchment areas;

Such reports described in (a) above shall be completed on Attachment C or a similar form
provided by the CDB and e—malled to the Child Care Program Improvement Specialist of
the CDB, DCYF by the 15" of the month following the end of each quarter and the end of
each contract year. Each report described in (a) above shall also include the cover sheet
Attachment D, or a similar form provided by the CDB;

All reports listed in Attachment E. The Department reserves the right to make adjustments
to attachment E, after consultation with Child Care Aware® of NH;

The Detailed Work-P/an described in Attachment E of this contract. Attachment B of this
contract shall be the Preliminary Work-Plan described in Attachment E. Thg OD}tai/ed
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Technology

2.7 Utilize technology and biild téchriological capacity by: |
a. Maintaining Child Care Aware® of America membership(s) for the catchment areas;

b. Using Internet access to connect to the NACCRRA SDS. CCR&R shall use the NACCRRA
SDS to enter information on clients, child care providers, and community partners, and
resources. CCR&R has and will maintain a portion of the contractor’s web server to host
the NACCRRA SDS program and data. Full access to the statewide database is available
at any time to the Administrator of the CDB and other CDB staff. The Child Care Program
improvement Specialist for the CDB will serve as the Administrator of the NACCRRA SDS.
CCR&R is required to use NACCRRA SDS to maintain the database and access
information;

c. Advising all clients seeking child care referrals, all child care providers entered into the
database, and all community partners and resources entered into the database of the
Confidentiality Policy. All clients shall be advised verbally at the time of the actual referral
and again in writing through the client letter they receive with their resource packet of
CCR&R's Confidentiality Policy. This policy shall require the approval of NH DHHS and
meet the standards of the Child Care Aware® of America Criteria for Best Practices.

d. Regularly updating the e-mail lists of child care providers for the purpose of distributing
‘materials and information;

e. Using NH EASY to work with the CDB to have access to that program to better meet the
needs of the families and providers; and

f. Assisting in the maintenance, future development, and updating of information by
contributing contract funds for the Child Care Aware® of NH website.

3. Meet the following staffing qualifications for each of the catchment areas listed above:
a. Provide knowledgeable staff, who are credentialed (or have the credential waived) at the

following levels according to the NH Early Childhood Professional Development System to
perform the corresponding duties in the table below:

Duties Credential Level

Take Calls & Meet With Families | Master Teacher Level 1

Trainer, Facuity, or Allied Master
Professional

Program Consuitant Master Professional
to Provide Technical Assistance

Hired to Provide Training

Consultant Staff

b. In those DO catchments areas where there are large numbers of non-English speaking
persons, or persons of Limited English Proficiency (LEP), have a bilingual staff person or
other translator/interpreter to be utilized when providing services or information to
providers. Staff shall not rely on family members or friends of LEP persons to serve as

interpreters unless the LEP person expressly requests such an arrangement. Children
—
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Work-Plan described in Attachment E shall become Attachment B of this contract, after
the catchment areas submit this document and it is approved by the CDB;

e. A summary of the performance measures outcome statistics for the contract period shall
be forwarded along with the final billing and shall be postmarked within 60 days of the
conclusion of the contract period;

f. Maintaining detailed supporting documentation to support these repbrts which shall be
available for DCYF review upon request;

g. Meeting with the Child Care Program Improvement Specialist for discussion and
approvals; and

h. Providing information on an NHEP client's child care search in a Department appropriate
format at the request of the NHEP ECS. The NHEP staff and CCR&R shall ask NHEP
clients to sign the “Release of Confidentiality” form at the NHEP orientation to make the

exchange possible.

. - o7
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Exhibit A — 1, Manchester Performance Measures

Easter Seals NH CCR&R shall meet 100 percent of the goals.

Goal Goal

RFP 7/1/13- SFY
Section | Performance Measure 6/30/15 2015

(i.) The number of on-site targeted technical assistance | 24 24

visits made to providers: center, licensed family, Licensed
3.B.1 Exempt, and potential providers

The number of child care teachers whose demonstrated | 150 150

competencies increase by 15% as a result of targeted

technical assistance.

(i) The total number of families receiving referrals each | 190 190
3.B.3.1 | quarter.

(ii.) The number of families receiving referrals with CCR&R | 450 450
3.B.3.1 | assistance. ‘
3.B.3.1 | (iii.) The number of FANF clients assisted by the CCR&R. 300 300

(i) The percent of families contacted for follow up survey | 20% 20%
3.B.3.3 | after referrals.

(ii.) The percent of families surveyed who were successful in | 60% 60%
3.B.3.3 | finding care.

(iii.) The percent of FANF families who were surveyed who | 20% 20%
3.B.3.3 | were unable to find care.

(v.) The percent of families who had all of their child care | 60% 60%
3.B.3.3 [ needs met by the care they chose. -

(i.) The number of new providers added to the database, | 6 6
3.B4. including licensed and license exempt providers. :

(ii.) The number of new child care opportunities created by | 90 90
.B.4. new and existing providers.

(iii.) The number of providers who receive targeted technical | 4 4

assistance to change/expand their programs to meet

identified unmet needs including but not limited to

infanttoddler care, special needs care and non-traditional
3.84. hours care.
3.B5.1 (i.) The number of Child Care Basics trainings offered. 6 6
3.B.5.1 (ii.) The number of attendees at Child Care Basics trainings. | 180 180

The number of program directors trained in Early Learning | CCC:10 CCC:10

Guidelines by program type: center-based (CCC}); licensed | FCC:1 FCC:1
3B.5.1 | family (FCC); license-exempt (LE) LE:1 LE:1

The number of teachers/practioners trained in Early | CCC:30 CCC:30

Learning Guidelines by program type. FCC:2 FCC:2
3.B.5.1 LE:1 LE:1

The number of infants/itoddlers served in programs | CCC:120 CCC:120

implementing the Early Learning Guidelines, by program | FCC12 FCC:12
3B5.1 | type. LE:2 LE:2
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The number of preschoolers served in programs | CCC:320 CCC:320

implementing the Early Learning Guidelines, by program | FCC:12 FCC:12
3.B5.1 | type. - : LE:2 - LE:2

" | The number of school age children served in programs { CCC:150 CCcC:150

implementing the Early Learning Guidelines FCC:10 FCC:10
3.B.5.1 LE:1 LE:1
3.B.5.1 (ii.) The number of other trainings offered. 13 13

(iv.) The number of attendees at other trainings offered by | 390 390
3.B.5.1 | the CCR&R.

(i.) The number of providers assisted in the licensing | 4 4
3.B.5.2 rocess.
3.B5.2 (ii.) The number of new credentials awarded. 25 25
3.B.5.2 (iii.) The number of credentials awarded at a higher level. 25 25

The number of teachers/practitioners, by program type, with | CCC: 400 CCC: 400

the following qualifications: CDA, state credential; Associate

degree, Baccalaureate degree, Masters degree or Graduate | EC:9 FC:9
3.B.5.2 | degree.
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Exhibit A — 2, Concord — Performance Measures

Easter Seals NH Child Care Resource and Referral Concord Catchment Care shall meet 100%
of the proposed goals. — -

Goal Goal
RFP 7/1/13- SFY
Section | Performance Measure 6/30/14 2015
(i.) The number of on-site targeted technical assistance .
visits made to providers: center, licensed family, Licensed 12 12
3.B.1 Exempt, and potential providers '
The number of child care teachers whose demonstrated
competencies increase by 15% as a result of targeted 100 100
technical assistance.
(i.) The total number of families receiving referrals each
3.B.3.1 [ quarter. 95 95
(ii.) The number of families receiving referrals with CCR&R
3.B.3.1 | assistance. 240 240
3.B.3.1 | (iii.) The number of FANF clients assisted by the CCR&R. 120 120
(i.) The percent of families contacted for follow up survey
3.B.3.3 | after referrals. 20% 20%
(ii.) The percent of families surveyed who were successful in
3.8.3.3 | finding care. 60% 60%
(ii.) The percent of FANF families who were surveyed who
3.B.3.3 | were unable to find care. 20% 20%
(v.) The percent of families who had all of their child care
3.B.3.3 { heeds met by the care they chose. 60% 60%
(i.) The number of new providers added to the database, :
3.B.4. including licensed and license exempt providers. 4 4
(i.) The number of new child care opportunities created by
. BA4. new and existing providers. 40 40
{iii.) The number of providers who receive targeted technical
assistance to change/expand their programs to meet
identified unmet needs including but not limited to 3 3
infant/toddler care, special needs care and non-traditional '
3.B.4. hours care.
3.B.5.1 | (i.) The number of Child Care Basics trainings offered. 5 5
3.B.5.1 | (ii.) The number of attendees at Child Care Basics trainings. 100 100
The number of program directors trained in Early Learning | CCC: 6 CCC: 6
Guidelines by program type: center-based (CCC); licensed | FCC: 1 FCC: 1
3B51 | family (FCC); license-exempt (LE) LE: 1 LE: 1
The number of teachers/practioners trained in Early | CCC: 16 CCC: 16
Learning Guidelines by program type. FCC: 3 FCC: 3
3.B.5.1 LE: 1 |LE: 1
e,( —
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The number of infantsftoddlers served in programs | CCC: 96 CCC: 96
implementing the Early Learning Guidelines, by program | FCC: 12 | FCC: 12

3.85.1 |lype. LE: 2 |LE: 2
The number of preschoolers served ’in 'p’ro’gra‘ms CCC: 192 | CCC:192
implementing the Early Learning Guidelines, by program | FCC: 15 |FCC: 15

3.8.5.1 | type. LE: 1 |LE: 1
The number of school age children served in programs | CCC: 100 | CCC:100
implementing the Early Learning Guidelines FCC: 9 |[Fcec: 9

3.B.5.1 LE: 1 |LE: 1

3.B.5.1 (iii.) The number of other trainings offered. 11 11
(iv.) The number of attendees at other trainings offered by

3.B.5.1 | the CCR&R. 220 220
(i.) The number of providers assisted in the licensing

3.B.5.2 | process. 2 2

3.B.5.2 | (ii.) The number of new credentials awarded. 24 24

3.B.5.2 | (iii.) The number of credentials awarded at a higher level. 24 24
The number of teachers/practitioners, by program type, with [ CCC: 350 CCC: 350
the following qualifications: CDA, state credential; Associate
degree, Baccalaureate degree, Masters degree or Graduate | FC: 10 FC: 10

3.8.5.2 | degree.
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Exhibit A — 3, Keene — Performance Measures

Easter Seals NH Child Carer Resqurce and Referral Keene Catchment Area shall meet 100% of

-the proposed goals. - - - - -

Goal

Goal
RFP 7/11113- SFY
Section | Performance Measure 6/30/15 2015
(i.) The number of on-site targeted technical assistance { 12 12
visits made to providers: center, licensed family, Licensed
3.B.1 Exempt, and potential providers
The number of child care teachers whose demonstrated | 75 75
competencies increase by 15% as a result of targeted
technical assistance.
(i.) The total number of families receiving referrals each | 45 45
3.B.3.1 quarter.
‘ (ii.) The number of families receiving referrals with CCR&R | 125 125
3.B.3.1 | assistance.
3.B.3.1 | (iii.) The number of FANF clients assisted by the CCR&R. 50 50
(i.) The percent of families contacted for follow up survey | 20% 20%
3.B.3.3 | after referrals.
(ii.) The percent of families surveyed who were successful in { 60% 60%
3.B.3.3 | finding care.
| (iii.) The percent of FANF families who were surveyed who | 20% 20%
3.B.3.3 | were unable to find care.
(v.) The percent of families who had all of their child care | 60% 60%
3.B.3.3 | needs met by the care they chose.
(i.) The number of new providers added to the database, | 2 2
3.B4. including licensed and license exempt providers.
(ii.) The number of new child care opportunities created by | 20 20
. B.A4. new and existing providers. :
(iii.) The number of providers who receive targeted technical | 2 2
assistance to changel/expand their programs to meet
identified unmet needs including but not limited to
infanttoddler care, special needs care and non-traditional
3.84. hours care.
3.B.5.1 (i.) The number of Child Care Basics trainings offered. 5 5
3.B.5.1 (ii.) The number of attendees at Child Care Basics trainings. | 75 75
The number of program directors trained in Early Learning | CCC:6 CCC#6
Guidelines by program type: center-based (CCC); licensed | FCC:1 FCC:1
385.1 | family (FCC); license-exempt (LE) LE:1 LE:1
The number of teachers/practioners trained in Early [ CCC:12 CCC:12
Learning Guidelines by program type. FCC:2 FCC:2
3.B.5.1 LE:1 LE:1
The number of infantsitoddlers served in programs | CCC:64 CCC:64
implementing the Early Learning Guidelines, by program | FCC:3 FCC:3
3.85.1 |ltype. LE:2 LE:2

Easter Seals NH Child Care Resource and Referral Keene Catchment Area
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The number of preschoolers served in programs | CCC:120 CCC:120
implementing the Early Learning Guidelines, by program | FCC:4 FCC4:
3.B5.1 |lype. LE:1 LE:1
The number of school age children served in programs { CCC:75 CCC:75
implementing the Early Learning Guidelines FCC:5 FCC:5
3.B.5.1 LE:1 LE:1
3.B.5.1 | (iii.) The number of other trainings offered. 9 9
(iv.) The number of attendees at other trainings offered by | 135 135
3.B.5.1 | the CCR&R.
(i.) The number of providers assisted in the licensing | 2 2
3.B.6.2 | process.
3.B.5.2 | (ii.) The number of new credentials awarded. 15 15
3.B.5.2 | (iii.) The number of credentials awarded at a higher level. 15 15
The number of teachers/practitioners, by program type, with | CCC: 100 CCC: 100
the following qualifications: CDA,; state credential; Associate
degree, Baccalaureate degree, Masters degree or Graduate | FC:6 FC:6
3.B.5.2 | degree.
2
2 0

Easter Seals NH Child Care Resource and Referral Keene Catchment Area
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Exhibit A, Attachment B Required Trainings Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Child Care Resource and Referral

The Contractor shall provide the following trainings: - : . -
1. Child Care Basics (as agreed upon with the Child Development Bureau);

2. Early Learning Guidelines;

3. At least one training focused on the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional

Development System at least once per contract year.

4. Additional non-bredit training for child care providers, which' addresses the Core
Knowledge Areas and provides a continuum from the Child Care Basic training in (1)
above, to advanced training for the experienced professional;

5. Recognizing and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect, in collaboration with DCYF
District Office staff at least once each SFY;

6. At least one training from Zero to Three's Preventing Child Abuse & Neglect
curriculum every six months; .

7. An annual training using the Strengthening Families through Early Care and
Education (SF!) Guidebook;

8. Emergency Preparedness for child care providers at least once per contract year.
The Contractor shall also provide written materials such as brochures and sample
plans, as well as resources for emergency plan development such as web addresses
and trainings sponsored by State and community agencies printed in the newsletter,
to assist providers in preparing for emergencies; and :

e 7
Contractor Initials:
Date: 5 7}0 7,)‘0/_6
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Exhibit A, Attachment D- Report Narrative Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Child Care Resource and Referral

CCR&R Quarterly Narrative Report

Agency Name: Vendor #:
Date: Quarter: 12345678 Contract Period: SFY
Reported prepared by: :
Program Manager: Catchment Area:
CCR&R Staff Credential(s) held
Detailed Work Plan submitted (date): 10/21/2011 Approved: [ ]Yes [ INo
Technology Policy updated (date): Approved: [ ]Yes [ INo

MOA with Family Resource Center Updated (date): Approved: [ JYes [ |No

Publicity materials submitted: Please provide a list of materials revised & submitted this quarter.
Quality Plan:

Date submitted: Approved: [ ]Yes [INo

Successes during this quarter: Please highlight (you may use bullets) those areas where you have
had particular success in meeting contract goals or work activities. If you bullet your successes,
please provide a summarizing brief paragraph.

Challenges during this quarter: Please describe those areas where you have had challenges in

" meeting contract goals or completing work activities. Include your efforts made and barriers or
challenges faced in meeting these goals. You may bullet your challenges, but please provide a brief
summarizing paragraph if you use bullets.

~
I of 2 Contractor —QA

Date }//l_;l )



Exhibit A, Attachment D- Report Narrative Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Child Care Resource and Referral

Outreach: Please highlight your marketing activities and/or your community meetings/activities
during this quarter.

-Technical Assistance® Please list ydur TA episodes and time spent.

Other: Please highlight any activities, successes, challenges, etc., not cap‘tured elsewhere in the
report.

Questions for the CDB: Please submit any questions you may have for the CDB regarding your
work, CDB policy & procedure, and/or your contract.

Goals for the coming quarter: If meeting with the Child Care Program Improvement Specialist
this quarter, we will set these goals together. If not, please list 2-5 goals (depending on how much is
involved in accomplishing them) that you will work on in the coming quarter.

Comments from the CDB: The Child Care Program Improvement Specialist will return comments
to each CCR&R regarding their work during the previous quarter. Comments will be inserted under
the appropriate headings in your narrative.

v
20f2 Contractor /Cé/l

Date —}—/}L/ ﬂ)/ 5
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EXHIBIT B

METHOD, SCHEDULE, AND CONDITIONS PRECENT TO PAYMENT

Contract Agency: Easter Seals New Hampshire, INC.

Program Period: July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015
Or Date of Governor & Executive Council approval, whichever is later

1. This Contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA
#93.575, Federal Agency Health and Human Services, Child Care and Development Block
Grant, in the amount of $742,078.00. Subject to the availability of Federal funds, and in
consideration for the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Contract, the State agency agrees to purchase from the Contractor services in the amount not
to exceed $742,078.00 for services provided during the program period specified above.

2. Quarterly payments shall be made to the Contractor subject to the following conditions:

2.1 Payments shall be made on a quarterly cost reimbursement basis beginning September
1, 2013 for actual expenditures up to the total contract price incurred in the fulfililment of
this agreement. The invoice, which shall be provnded by DHHS after the approval of
Governor & Executive Council, must be sent to:

John Harrington, Contract Specialist
Department of Health and Human Services
Contract Unit
129 Pleasant St., Concord, New Hampshire 03301

2.2 In lieu of hard copies, invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and be e-mailed
to: john.h.harrington@dhhs.state.nh.us

2.3 Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved ||ne item budget shown in
Exhibits B-1 and B-2. If applicable, this will include drawing down match funds
consistently throughout the contract period. Any adjustment to a line item in excess of
10% of the original budget lines will require the prior written approval of the State. The
Contractor must include a detailed explanation and revised line item budget figures.

2.4 Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports as defined in Exhibit A.

2.5 A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the end of
each fiscal year. Failure to submit the final invoice by that date may result in non-
payment.

.
Contractor’s Initials /g /

Date 5/)”/f6/j



Exhibit B-1, a Manchester

RFP # 13-DCYF-CDB-RR-05

EXHIBIT B-1, a

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Division for Childrén, Youth and Families

PERSONNEL DATA - Manchester

State Fiscal Year 2014

PTOJeCt AMOUTY |
% of Time Charged for
A Annual | toWorkon SFY 2014 |
" |Name Title Salary ‘the Project | (7/1/13-6/30/14)
1|Cindy Wallace Program Coordinator $ 46,140.00 |.85 FTE $ 39,216.00
2]Karyn Yeatman Program Manager $ 35,470.00 [1.0 FTE $ 35,470.00
3|Glenda West Bilingual Child Care Specialist | $ 36,503.00 |1.0 FTE $ 36,503.00
4 $ - $ -
5 $ - $ . -
6 $ - $ -
7 $ - $ -
8 $ .
9
Total: $ 111,189.00
State Fiscal Year 2015
PToJect Arount |
% of Time Charged for
Annual to Work on SFY 2015
Name Title Salary the Project | (7/1/14-6/30/15)
1]Cindy Wallace Program Coordinator $ 46,140.00 |.85 FTE $ 39,216.00
2{Karyn Yeatman Program Manager $35,760.00 J1.0 FTE $  35,760.00
3|Glenda West Bilingual Child Care Specialist | $ 36,720.00 |1.0 FTE $ 36,720.00
4 $ - $ -
5 3 - $ -
6 $ - 3 -
7 $ - $ -
8 $ -
9
Total: $ 111,696.00
Exhibit B-1 - Personnel Data %//
NH Child Care Resource Referral Contractor Initials: (X
Manchester Catchment Ar / y
anchester Catchmen ea Date: J }D/ﬂ'/}

Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B-2, a — Budget Proposal - Manchester
RFP #13-0CYF-CDB-RR-05

Bidders shall complete the following chart for each fiscal year. Additional line items can be included, but a through description must be provided in
the budget narrative. A Microsoft Excel version of this budget is available and can be provided if requested by the bidder.

New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: Easter Seals NH

Budget Request for: Manchester Child Care Resource and Referral

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period:

SFY 2014 Budget

1. Total Salary/Wages 111,189 111,189 s 111,189
2. Employee Benefits 30,021 30,021 $ 30,021
3. Consultants 4,000 4,000 $ 4,000
4. Equipment: $ -
Rental $ -

Repair and Maintenance $- -
Purchase/Depreciation $ .

5. Supplies: 1,532 1,532 $ 1,532
Educational $ -

" " Office 'S -

6. Travel 1.800 1,800 $ 1.800
7. Occupancy 6,528 6528 |$ 3200{$ 9.728
8. Cument Expenses $ -
Telephone 1,198 1,198 $ 1,198
Postage/Printing 2,000 2,000 $ 2,000:
Subscriptions/Membership dues 700 700 $ 700

Audit and Legal $ -
insurance $ -

Board Expenses $ -

9. Software $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ -
11. Staff Education and Training 2,500 2,500 $ 2,500
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): 16,147 16,147 32018 16,467
TOTAL 177,615 177615 | ¢ 3,520 1 % 181,135

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

10%

Contractor Initials: {(, . f
Date: R 5/) 3///‘67/_5
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Exhibit B-2 - Budget Proposal -
RFP #13-DCYF-CDB-RR-05

Bidders shall complete the following chart far each fiscal year. Additional fine items can be included, but a through description must be provided in
the budget narrative. A Microsoft Excel version of this budget is available and can be provided if requested by the bidder.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Easter Seals NH

Budget Request for: Manchester Child Care Resource and Referral
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2015 Budget

111,696

1. Total Salary/Wages [3 111,696 $ $ 111,666
2. Employee Benefits $ 30,158 $ 30.158 $ 30,158
3. Consultants $ 4,000 $ 4,000 H 4,000
4. Equipment $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation s - s -
5. Supplies: $ 1,532 $ 1,532 $ 1,532
Educational $ - $ -
Office $ - $ -
6. Travel $ 1,800 $ 1,800 $ 1,800
7. Occupancy - $ 6,528 s 6528 ]s 3,2001$ 9,728
8. Cument Expenses $ - $ -
Telephone $ 1,198 $ 1,198 $ 1,198
Postage/Printing $ 1,356 H 1,356 $ 1,356
SubscriptionsMembership dues| $ 700 H 700 s 700
Audit and Legal s - s .
Insurance $ - H -
Board Expenses s - s -
9. Software S - S -
10. Marketing/Communications H - $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,500 H 2,500 H 2,500
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - H -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ 16,147 | 8 -1$ 16,147 | $ 320 | ¢ 16,467
TOTAL $ 177,615 { $ -1$ 177645 | $ 35201 $ 181,135

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10%

;/‘
Contractor Initials: g /

.37)0//*6}5
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Exhibit B-1, b

RFP # 13-DCYF-CDB-RR-05

EXHIBIT B-1, b

State of New Hampshire

PERSONNEL DATA - Concord

State Fiscal Year 2014

Department of Health and Human Services

" Division for Children, Youth and Families

PTOJECT AROUNT |
% of Time Charged for
Apnual toWorkon]  SFY 2014
Name Title Salary | the Project | (7/1/13-6/30/14)
1|Cindy Wallace Program Coordinator | $ 46,140.00 .05 FTE $  2,304.00
2|Claudette Mallory Program Manager $ 36,845.00 |.875 FTE $ 36,845.00
3|Krisha Dubreuil Child Care Specialist $ 26,870.00 |.8 FTE $ 26,870.00
4 $ - $ -
5 $ - $ -
6 $ - $ .
7 $ - $ -
8 $ -
9
Total: $ 66,019.00
State Fiscal Year 2015
PToJect Amount |
% of Time Charged for
Annual to Work on SFY 2015 |
Name Title Salary the Project | (7/1/14-6/30/15)
1|Cindy Wallace Program Coordinator $ 46,140.00 |.05 FTE $ 2,304.00
2|Claudette Mallory Program Manager $ 36,876.00 |.875 FTE $ 36,876.00
3| Krisha Dubreuil Child Care Specialist $ 26,892.00 |.8 FTE $ 26,892.00
4 $ - $ -
5 $ - $ -
6 $ - $ -
7 $ - $ -
8 $ -
9
Total: $ 66,072.00

Exhibit B-1 - Personnel Data

NH Child Care Resource Referral

Concord Catchment Area
Page 1 of 1

Confractor Initials:

Date:

=
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Exhibit B-2, b ~ Budget Proposat - Concord

RFP #13-DCYF-CDB-RR-05

Bidders shail complete the following chart for each fiscal year. Additional line items can be included, but a through description must be provided in

the budget namative. A Microsoft Excel version of this budget is available and can be provided if requested by the bidder.

Bidder/Program Name: Easter Seals NH

{Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2014 Budget

Budget Request for: Concord Child Care Resource & Referral

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Page 29 of 35

1. Total Salary/Wages $, 66,019 66,019 s 66,019
2. Employee Benefits s 17,825 17,825 s 17,825
3. Consuliants s 14,000 s -
4. Equipment: : s -
Rentai $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ -
Purchase/Depreciation H -
5. Supplies: ' s 675 675 s 675
Educational $ -
Office " $ -
6. Travel $ -800 800 S 800
7. Occupancy s 5271 5271 % 2000|s 7,271
8. Current Expenses $ -
Telephone $ -
Postage/Printing 600 600 $ 600 |.
Subscriptions/Membership dues| $ 450 450 $ 450
Audit and Legal $ -
Insurance $ -
Board Expenses $ -
9. Software $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ 734 734 $ 734
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ . 9,637 9,237 200 | S 9,437
TOTAL $ 106,011 101,811 $ 22001]$ 103,811
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10%
. 27
Contractor Initials:
Date: 1 j"()ﬁ




Exhibit B-2 - Budget Proposal -
RFP #13-DCYF-CDB-RR-05

Bidders shalt complete the following charl for each fiscal year. Additional line items can be inciuded, but a through description must be provided in
the budget namrative. A Microsoft Excel version of this budget is available and can be provided if requested by the bidder.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Easter Seals NH

Budget Request for: Concord Child Care Resource & Referral
" (Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2015 Budget

1. Totai SalaryfWages 66.072 | $§ Teeo72| I's T esorz|
2. Employee Benefits $ 17,840 H 17,840 H 17.840
3. Consultants $ 3,932 $ 3,932 $ 3,932
- |4. Equipment: [ - [ -
) Rental [ - [3 .
Repair and Maintenance H - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation s - 1 -
5. Supplies: ) $ 675 $ 675 s 675
Educational - $ - H -
Office ' $ - $ -
6. Travel - s 800 s . 800 1s 800
7. Occupancy $ 5271 $ 5.271]'s 2,000|s 7.271
8. Current Expenses $ ; - $ -
Telephone s - 1 -
Postage/Printing $ 600 s 600 $ 600
Subscriptions/Membership dues| $ 450 $ 450 s 450
Audit and Legal s - $ -
Insurance H - $ -
Board Expenses $ - 1 -
9. Software $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ 734 [ 734 $ 734
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ 963718 -1s 98637 |$ 200|$ 9,837
TOTAL $ 106,011 | $ -1$ 106,011 | $ 2,2001% 108,211

: o
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10% € /_
Contractor Initials:

Date:

B/0/7

4
7

Page 29 of 35



Exhibit B-1, ¢

RFP # 13-DCYF-CDB-RR-05

EXHIBIT B-1,¢

PERSONNEL DATA - Keene

State Fiscal Year 2014

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Division for Children, Youth and Families

PTOJECt Amount |
% of Time Charged for
| Annual - | to Work on SFY 2014 _
Name Title ! Salary | the Project | (7/1/13-6/30114)
1|Cindy Wallace Progrém Coordinator $ 46,140.00 |.1 FTE $ 4,620.00
2|Shelly Kernozicky - |Program Manager $ 33,081.00 |.875 FTE $ 33,081.00
3fSarah Albrecht Program Specialist $ 16,854.00 }.5 FTE $ 16,854.00
4 $ - $ .
5 $ - $ -
6 $ - $ -
7 $ - $ -
8 $ -
9
Total: $ 54,555.00
State Fiscal Year 2015
PTOJECY AIGURT
% of Time Charged for
Annual to Work on SFY 2015
Name Title Salary the Project | (7/1/14-6/30/15)
1|Cindy Wallace Program Coordinator $ 46,140.00 |.1 FTE $ 4,620;00
2|Shelly Kernozicky Program Manager $ 33,108.00 |.875 FTE $ 33,108.00
3|sarah Albrecht Program Specialist $ 16,980.00 |.5 FTE $ 16,980.00
4 $ - $ -
5 $ - $ -
6 $ - $ -
7 $ - $ -
8 $ -
9
Total: $ 54,708.00

Exhibit B-1 - Personnel Data

NH Child Care Resource Referral
Keene Catchment Area
Page 10of 1

@’
Contractor Initials:

Date: _*_3_/ :)!),}-02}



Exhibit B-2 - Budget Proposal -

RFP #13-DCYF-CDB-RR-05

Bidders shall complete the following chart for each fiscal year. Additional line items can be included, but a through description must be prowded in

the budget narlatnve A Microsoft Excel version of this budget is available and can be prowded if requested by the bidder.

Budget Period:

Bidder/Program Name: Easter Seals NH

(Name of RFF)

SFY 2014 Budget

Budget Request for: _Keene Child Care Resource and Referral

New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services

1. Total Salary/Wages 54,555 54,555 $ 54,555
2. Employee Benefits - 14,729 14,729 $ 14,729
3. Consultants 1,800 1,800 $ 1,800
4. Equipment: $ -
Rental $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ -
Purchase/Depreciation H -

5. Supplies: 695 695 $ 695
Educational s -

Office s -

6. Travel 1,650 1,650 $ 1,650
7. Occupancy $ -
8. Current Expenses 4,737 4737 | ¢ 3,2371$ 7,974
Telephone H -
Postage/Printing 450 450 $ 450
Subscriptions/Membership dues 400 400 $ 400

Audit and Legal $ -
Insurance s -

Board Expenses $ -

9. Software $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ -
11. Staff Education and Training 450 450 $ 450
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): 7.947 7,947 324 | § 8,271
TOTAL 87.413 87,413 35611 90,874

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

10%

Page 29 of 35

Contractor Initials

Date:
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Exhibit B-2, c -~ Budget Proposal - Keene
RFP #13-DCYF-CDB-RR-0§

Bidders shall complete the following chart for each fiscal year. Additional line items can be included, but a through description must be provided in
. the budget narrative. A Microsoft Excel version of this budget is available and can be provided if requested by the bidder.

New Hampshire Departiment ot Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Easter Seals NH

Budget Request for: Keene Chiid Care Resource and Referral
(Name of RFP)

SFY 2015 Budget

Budget Period:

1. Total SalaryWages 54,708 s 54,708 s 708
2. Employee Benefits 14,171 $ 14,771 $ 14,771
3. Consultants 1,800 $ 1,800 $ 1.800
4. Equipment: $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ 500 $ 500 $ 500
' Educational s - s -
Office $ - $ -
6. Travel 1,650 $ 1.650 s 1.650
7. Occupancy $ 4,737 $ 473718 3237 (% 7,974
8. Current Expenses $ - $ -
Telephone $ - $ -
Postage/Printing 450 $ 450 $ 450
Subscriptions/Membership dues} $ 400 $ 400 $ 400
Audit and Legal $ - $ -
Insurance $ - $ -
Board Expenses s - s -
9. Software $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ 450 $ 450 $ 450
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): 7,946 -18 7,946 324 | § 8,270
TOTAL $ 87.4121]8 -1$ B87,41218$ 3,561 )% 80,973

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10%

<7,
Contractor Initials:
Date: A voLs /—ﬂ / _;
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» Page __ of
NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that aII funds recetved by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department

4. Documentation: In- addmon to the determination forms requured by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination:and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
" applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Klg:kbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is ellglble for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shail determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess
of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shali be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of

costs;
NH DHHS Contractor Initials: J
Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions 7 )’Z/ 7 g
January 2013 Date: J M/j
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for.each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations" and
the provisions of Standards for Audlt of Govemmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the reguiations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the services and the
Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for
any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.

NH DHHS Contractor Initials: ; f
Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions \/ 4y
Date: \j ﬁ /‘()/v

January 2013
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12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
lF)inancial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the

epartment.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract-and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such .obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement: ‘

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services.

15. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:
All materials (written, video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
before printing, production, distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without prior written approval
from DHHS.

16. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
" performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at ali times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this- Contract the. facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the
Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to subcontracting, the
Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated function(s). This is
accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of the
subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is résponsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
e Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating the

function
——
NH DHHS Contractor Initials:
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¢ Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities
and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate
Page of

* Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

e Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed

e DHHS: shall review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor |dent|f|es deficiencies or areas for improvement are ldentlﬁed the Contractor shall take
corrective action.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and federal

laws, regulations, rules and orders.
DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the Contractor
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue
for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be

amended or revised from the time fo time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under fhis Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

7
NH DHHS Contractor Initials;_ &,
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990.

7t _
L,.A"//LJ(Z L{ v — Elin Treanor, CFO/COO

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. <3 4%?&

{Contractor Name) (Date)

Z o —
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: (//

Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act / .
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